Academic Catalog

2023 - 2024



Greetings from the President

Dear Student,

For just a moment, visualize the Olympics – the moments where all the hard work and preparation come together; the seconds in the spotlight; when champions rise to the occasion. Next, consider the back story of each athlete. Before the gold medal moment comes the hard work of training. Now visualize yourself – a student at Montana Bible College. Here's the deal: College is not your end goal in life. Earning a degree or certificate from MBC will not be the greatest achievement of your life. This is not your gold medal moment. This is training.

Your heart cries with the Apostle Paul: "I want to know Christ!" And as an outflow of knowing Jesus, you're here because you believe He's calling you to prepare yourself to serve in His kingdom. You may not know what that will look like exactly, but your heart gets a rush of excitement to think of joining Paul in saying, "We proclaim [Jesus], admonishing and teaching everyone with all wisdom, so that we may present everyone perfect in Christ. To this end I labor, struggling with all his energy, which so powerfully works in me." To know Jesus more, and to equip yourself for ministry – this is the goal that burns in your heart. So students, here's my charge to you: Like the athlete in training; like Jesus in His earthly ministry, keep your eye on the goal so that you train well. For the duration of your career as a student at MBC, your mission is clear. Know Jesus more and equip yourself for ministry.

May you train well!

With joy in Jesus,

Ryan Ward

TABLE OF CONTENTS

General Information	
Mission	
Goals	-
Training of disciples at MBC will produce graduates who are:	
The Implementation of Goals	
·	
Discipleship	
Definition	
Discipleship Goals	
Doctrinal Statement	10
Accreditation	13
Graduation and Placement Rates	13
Library	14
Financial Information	15
Title IV Eligibility	
Veterans Benefits	
Scholarships	15
Scholarship Eligibility	
Supporting Church Scholarships	
Merit Scholarships	
Applying for Scholarships	
Scholarship Awards and Notification	
Academic Information	
Policies	19
Academic Calendar	
Academic Student Load	
Student Classification	
Academic Probation and Suspension	
Grading System	
Minimum Success Standards	20
Credit Transfer Policy	20
Credit Transfers from Non-accredited Schools	21
Credit Transfers from Quarter System Schools	21
Correspondence Credit	21
Independent Study	22
Advanced Standing	22
Audit Policy	22
Registration for Courses	
Withdrawal from a Course	
Failure to Pass a Course	
Incomplete Work	
Montana Bible College Dual Enrollment Program	23
Internships	24
Internship Policy	
Procedures for Applying and Serving Internships	24

Graduation	25
Graduation Honors and Awards	25
Graduation Requirements	25
Academic Support	25
Academic Culture Training for Students (ACTS)	
Partner Prep Program	28
Academic Programs	29
Certificate in Biblical Studies	
Bachelor of Arts in Biblical Studies	
MBC Core Curriculum Requirements	
·	
General Education Requirements	
Theology Requirements	
Biblical Studies Requirements	
Discipleship Requirements	
Ministry Requirements	
Bachelor of Arts Degree Program Outcomes	31
Bachelor of Arts In Biblical Studies Emphases	33
Pastoral Emphasis With Village Missions	35
General Ministry Emphasis	
Missions Emphasis	39
Biblical Counseling Emphasis	
Next Generation Ministry Emphasis	
Lawrenten Bertmandin Bernan	45
Lancaster Partnership Degrees	
Bachelor of Arts in Business Administration	
Bachelor of Arts in Communication	
Bachelor of Arts in Criminal Justice	
Bachelor of Arts in Healthcare Management	
Bachelor of Arts in Marketing	
Bachelor of Arts in Sports Management	
Bachelor of Arts in WorkPlace Ministry Degree	
Course Descriptions	54
Biblical Counseling	
BC 101 Introduction to Biblical Counseling (3)	54
BC 201 Problems and Procedures in Biblical Counseling (3)	
BC 301 Models of Sanctification (3)	
BC 302 Marriage and Family Counseling (3)	54
BC 303 Counseling Observation (3)	54
BC 304 Biblical Peacemaking (3)	54
BC 400 Counseling Internship (4)	55
BC 401 Medical Issues in Counseling (3)	55
BC 402 Critique of Modern Counseling Theory (2)	55
Biblical Studies	55
BS 101 Old Testament Survey (3)	
BS 102 New Testament Survey (3)	
BS 105: Bible Study Methods + Logos Lab (4)	
BS 212 The Gospel of John (2)	
BS 215 Genesis (2)	
BS 310-329 Narrative and Legal Literature (2 or 3)	
BS 330-359 Epistolary Literature (2)	
של אואס באס באס באס באס באס באס באס באס באס ב	

BS 360-369 Wisdom/Poetic Literature (2)	
BS 370-389 Prophetic Literature (2)	56
Business	56
BU 205 Business as Mission (2)	
BU 310 Theology of Work and Witness in the Workforce (2)	
BU 411 Business Administration Skills (2)	
• •	
Ethics and Philosophy	
EP 104 Logic (3)	
EP 201 Introduction to Philosophy (3)	
EP 204 Biblical Worldview & Cultural Engagement (2)	57
History	58
HS 201 Church History to 1500 (2)	58
HS 202 Church History 1501 to Present (2)	58
HS 205 History of Western Civilization (3)	58
HS 301 Christian Political Thought (3)	58
Letters and Science	5.8
LS 101 Family Development (2)	
LS 102 Geography of Palestine (2)	
LS 103 Dinosaur Dig (2)	
LS 115 Effective Written Communication (3)	
LS 201 Greek I (3)	
LS 202 Greek II (3)	
LS 210 Effective Oral Communication (3)	
LS 216 Introduction to Economics (2)	
LS 301 Greek III (3)	59
LS 302 Greek IV (3)	59
LS 303 Hebrew I (2)	60
LS 304 Hebrew II (2)	60
LS 410-429 Greek Exegesis (2)	60
LS 430-449 Hebrew Exegesis (2)	60
Ministry Development	60
MD 302 Teaching Children – Ages 0-11 (3)	
MD 400 Ministry Internship (4)	60
MD 401 Rural Church Ministry (2)	
MD 402 Next Generation Ministry Internship (4)	61
MD 403 Women in Ministry (2)	
MD 499 Ministry Competency Exam (0)	61
Missions	61
MI 101 Christian Mission Perspectives (2)	
MI 201 Missions Principles (2)	
MI 305 Introduction to Native American Ministries (2)	
MI 307 Church Planting (2)	
MI 309 Cross Cultural Training (2)	
MI 401 Anthropology (2)	
MI 403 Spiritual Warfare in Missions (2)	
MI 410 Missions Internship (12)	
Math and Science	62
MS 202 Astronomy (3)	
MS 204 Science and Origins (3)	
Music	
MU 101 Choir (1)	63

MU 305 Music-Worship Leadership (2)	63
MU 401 Music in Worship (2)	
Pastoral Studies	63
PS 301 Homiletics I (3) /	63
PS 302 Homiletics II (3)	64
PS 304 Youth Ministry & Cultural Analysis (2)	64
PS 400 Pastoral Internship (4)	64
PS 401 Pastoral Leadership (2)	64
PS 402 Advanced Pastoral Leadership (2)	64
PS 403 Discipling & Counseling Youth (2)	64
PS 406 Youth Ministry in the Local Church (2)	64
Physical Fitness	65
PE 110-199 Physical Fitness (1)	65
PE 110, 113 Climbing Fundamentals (1) or (2)	65
PE 118, 120 Advanced Climbing (1) or (2)	65
PE 123 Healthy Living (1)	65
PE 124 Healthy Living (2)	65
PE 125 Healthy Living (1)	65
PE 130, 131 Brazilian Jiu-Jitsu (1) or (2)	65
Spiritual Formation	66
SF 100 Chapel (Pass/Fail)	66
SF 120 Academic Culture Training for Students (ACTS) (Pass/Fail)	66
SF 406ST Israel Study Tour (2)	66
Theology	66
TH 101 Survey of Doctrine (3)	66
TH 102 Apologetics (3)	66
TH 103: Examining Worldviews (3)	67
TH 201 Doctrine of the Scriptures and God (3)	67
TH 202 World Religions (2)	67
TH 301 Doctrine of Humanity, Sin, and Salvation (3)	67
TH 302 Doctrine of God the Son (3)	67
TH 303 Doctrine of the Holy Spirit, Angels, and the Church (3)	67
TH 402 Doctrine of Future Things and Contemporary Issues (3)	67
Administration and Faculty	68
Administration	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Faculty	Frror! Bookmark not defined.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Mission

Montana Bible College equips future Christian leaders to be gospel-centered disciple-makers for the glory of God and the advancement of His Church.

GOALS

TRAINING OF DISCIPLES AT MBC WILL PRODUCE GRADUATES WHO ARE:

- Spiritually characterized by the habits of spiritual maturity, a commitment to the authority of Scripture, and a consistent devotional life whose outflow is exhibited in the fruit of the Spirit;
- Intellectually characterized by the ability to study, interpret, and apply the Scriptures as they encounter the challenges of daily living, cultivating a biblical worldview in which knowledge and practice are unified in the Christian's life;
- Socially characterized by a commitment to God-honoring relationships and the ability to communicate accurately the truths of Scripture in culturally relevant ways;
- Physically characterized by a respect for one's body as redeemed by Jesus and indwelt by the Holy Spirit;
- Characterized in ministry by a consistent commitment to disciple-making, exhibited by a servant's heart, a love for the Church, and a determined obedience to the Great Commission.

THE IMPLEMENTATION OF GOALS

Of what value are mission statements and goals? What part do they play in the educational process? As a craftsman envisions the finished product before he begins, so the purpose or mission statement names the desired end of the educational process. As the craftsman draws a blueprint, so the goals specify the important features of the end product. To state it another way, the purpose statement identifies the destination, while the goals designate the distance to be traveled.

Measurable objectives for MBC's educational process then provide the yardsticks against which a student's progress is measured. Objectives for each goal help students know the expectations ahead for their education, while at the same time providing MBC with measures of how well we are accomplishing these goals in each student's life.

Our method for accomplishing each goal and objective is discipleship. Through directed relationships with faculty and other mentors, students are crafted (discipled) into laborers prepared for dynamic Christian living and service to the Lord. The ultimate end is to shape in them the passion and ability to pass on the investment made in them during their education at MBC (2 Timothy 2:2). In other words, MBC's goals and objectives are generational in that they are intended to produce a disciple who is capable of producing other disciples.

What follows are the objectives, or the ways in which we measure each of MBC's stated goals and help students identify what is expected of them.

- Spiritual maturity should be the result of careful and systematic study of the Scriptures, as well as growth in the spiritual disciplines. Graduates of MBC will consistently demonstrate habits of Bible reading and prayer, and they will exhibit the fruit of the Spirit appropriate to a growing believer in Jesus.
- Intellectual growth should likewise come from the study and application of the Scriptures, as well as a deeper
 understanding of culture and its influence in the Church. Graduates of MBC will demonstrate growth in their
 understanding and knowledge of the Bible, as well as their ability to apply knowledge to problems every Christian
 will encounter.
- Social growth will result from constant interaction with other believers who serve in various roles in the student's life. Students will be discipled and disciple others for the sake of accomplishing the Great Commission. They will also "stimulate one another to love and good deeds" (Hebrews 10:24-25) as they fellowship with peers in chapel and student housing. Graduates of MBC will be able to engage in meaningful discipleship in the local church and encourage growth in the lives of others as they interact in various social settings.
- Growth in the physical dimension of the Christian's life refers to how the Christian views and maintains his or her
 physical body. Appropriate nutrition and exercise demonstrate a healthy commitment to stewardship of God's
 gift of a human body to each of us. Graduates will be able to demonstrate good health habits in their daily routines
 of eating, exercise, and sleep.
- Ministry involvement is not just a matter of spending time with people, though spending time is essential. Ministry must include disciple-making through teaching, counseling, shepherding, and many more aspects of leadership and service, if it is to be substantive. Leadership skills will be developed as students grow in their ability to be discipled and disciple others. While we cannot encapsulate years of experience into a few years of training, MBC is able to expose students to sufficient aspects of ministry involvement and leadership opportunities to prepare them for meaningful ministry. Internships in the local church and discipleship training give graduates the tools needed to identify ways in which the Lord is working in His church and to enjoin their labor in His efforts. Graduates will be able to make disciples of other believers by directing relationships established in their local churches.

Some carefully chosen tools help train these goals and objectives into the lives of students. Each of these tools represents a separate strand of the discipleship process and contributes to the overall growth of the student. The curriculum outlined here in the catalog is one of the primary tools by which MBC wishes to help students realize Christian maturity, complemented by the equally important tool of involvement in the community environment at MBC and the student's local church.

Within the curriculum, MBC strives to disciple students by honing their character and skills through academics, discipleship labs, ministry involvement, and chapels. We also expect the tool of relationships with others (e.g., peers, Christians in their churches, and professors) to assist in their growth as disciples and disciple-makers as they live, study, and minister together. These tools help lift the blueprint off the page and craft it into a life that glorifies God by training up a new generation of disciples to live for and serve the Lord.

"The things which you have heard from me in the presence of many witnesses, entrust these to faithful men who will be able to teach others also." 2 Timothy 2:2

DISCIPLESHIP

Montana Bible College believes that discipleship lies at the very core of our mission to train up men and women for dynamic Christian living and service (Matthew 28:18-20). To fulfill the Great Commission, we must do more than make disciples – we must make disciple-makers!

DEFINITION

Montana Bible College believes that discipleship is intentional, directed relationship. Discipleship is <u>intentional</u> because it seeks to meet individuals where they are and purposely stimulate them to move beyond (Matthew 28:16-20; Ephesians 4:1; Colossians 1:28-29). Discipleship is <u>directed</u> because it has a goal: to make mature followers of Jesus (Matthew 28:18-20; Colossians 1:28-29; Hebrews 6:1). Discipleship is <u>relational</u> in that it is always done person to person. The command to make disciples is given to people for people (Matthew 28:18-20). Elders are people shepherding people. Missionaries are people sent to people. Parents are people raising people. Good discipleship needs all three components: intention, direction and relationship. Direction without intentional relationship is a program approach to discipleship that says, "Read this book. Take this class. Memorize these verses. Listen to these sermons. Memorize these answers. Follow these steps." Conversely, relationship without intentional direction results in a discipleship process that says, "Let's just hang out together. Let's meet over coffee to talk. Let's encourage one another." Montana Bible College believes that discipleship is a life-on-life relational process with intention and direction. We believe that Jesus and the Apostles clearly modeled this approach.

DISCIPLESHIP GOALS

Our understanding of discipleship leads MBC to work toward the following goals for our students as we *intentionally direct* them through our *relationship* with them.

- 1. Each student will experience personal growth toward maturity in Christ.
- 2. Each bachelor's graduate will be committed to living out discipleship within the context of the local church.
- 3. Each bachelor's graduate will be equipped to effectively lead others towards maturity in Christ.
- 4. Each bachelor's graduate will own a personal commitment to a life-long lifestyle of disciple-making.

"Whatever you do, work at it with all your heart, as working for the Lord, not for human masters, since you know that you will receive an inheritance from the Lord as a reward. It is the Lord Christ you are serving." Colossians 3:23-24

DOCTRINAL STATEMENT

THE SCRIPTURES

We believe the Scriptures, both the Old and the New Testaments, to be verbally inspired by God in the original writings, and are, therefore, inerrant, infallible, and complete. Thus, they are the supreme and final authority in faith and life (2 Timothy 3:16-17; 2 Peter 1:20-21; 1 Corinthians 2:13).

THE GODHEAD

We believe in one triune God existing in three persons: Father, Son, and Holy Spirit, eternal in being, identical in nature, equal in power and glory, and having the same perfections and attributes (Deuteronomy 6:4; Matthew 28:18-19; 2 Corinthians 13:14).

GOD THE FATHER

We believe in God the Father as the Source of salvation, as the One who sent the Son into the world, and as the Author of the Divine plan for the universe. In a non-spiritual sense He is the Father of all by virtue of the Creator-creature relationship, but in a spiritual sense He is the Father of all who believe in Christ. He is the Initiator of redemption; He seeks worship from His children, and is their Disciplinarian unto righteousness (Acts 17:29; Galatians 3:26; John 6:44; 4:23; Hebrews 12:9).

CREATION

We believe that, for His own glory, God personally created the existing universe with all its basic systems and kinds of organisms in the six literal days of the creation week (Genesis 1:1, 31; 2:1-3; Exodus 20:11; 31:17; Romans 11:36; Colossians 1:16).

GOD THE SON

We believe that Jesus Christ, the Son of God, was conceived by the Holy Spirit and born of the virgin Mary in order that He might reveal God and redeem sinful man. We believe that He is true God, thus eternal in His existence, and true man, but without sin of any kind. We believe that He accomplished our redemption through His death on the cross as a propitiatory and substitutionary sacrifice, and that our redemption is made sure by His resurrection from the dead in the identical, though glorified, body in which He was crucified (Luke 1:26-28; John 1:14; 14:6-11; Romans 3:24-25; 1 Peter 1:3-5).

We believe that the Lord Jesus Christ ascended into heaven and is now exalted at the right hand of God where, as His Priest for His people, He ministers on their behalf as Representative, Intercessor, and Advocate (Hebrews 9:24; 7:25; Romans 8:34; 1 John 2:1-2).

We believe in the personal, premillennial, and imminent return of our Lord and Savior, Jesus Christ, and in His kingdom reign upon the earth (1 Thessalonians 4:13-18; Zechariah 14:4-11; Revelation 20:6).

GOD THE HOLY SPIRIT

We believe that the Holy Spirit indwells every believer; that He baptizes them into the Body of Christ at the moment of conversion and seals them until the day of redemption. His ministry in believers is to cause them to glorify Jesus. We believe that the Holy Spirit sovereignly bestows spiritual gifts upon the children of God at conversion for service in the Body of Christ. We believe the gifts of languages and healing are no longer normative. Likewise, the historical roles of apostle and prophet have ceased (Romans 8:9; 1 Corinthians 12:12-14; Ephesians 1:13-14; 2:20, 4:8-13, 5:18-20; John 16:14; 2 Corinthians 12:11-12; Acts 10:44-47; Isaiah 28:11ff, 1 Corinthians 14:20-22).

MAN

We believe that all humans are individually created in the image of God, their personhood established at conception. Adam and Eve were created sinless, but subsequently fell and thereby incurred not only physical death but also spiritual death, which is separation from God. Having inherited this sin nature, we believe that humans are sinners by birth, by nature, by choice and by practice, and thus come under condemnation of God (Genesis 1:25-27; 3:1-19; Romans 3:10-16: 5:12-21; Ephesians 2:1-3,12; Jeremiah 1:4-5; Luke 1:39-44; Psalm 51:5; 139:13-16; Exodus 21:22-25; Leviticus 19:14; Romans 5:3-4; James 1:2-4; Philippians 1:20-26; 2 Timothy 4:6-8).

We believe in the sanctity of marriage as God-ordained, a special union between a man and a woman (genetically defined) within which sexual relations are honored and affirmed by God. We believe that all sexual unions and activities, outside of marriage as defined above, are in violation of God's design and revealed will (Genesis 2:22-25; Proverbs 5:15-23; Romans 1:26-27; 1 Corinthians 6:9-10).

SALVATION

We believe that salvation is a gift of God, and that all who receive by faith the Lord Jesus Christ are born again by the Spirit of God, thereby receiving eternal life, and thus becoming children of God. We believe that saving faith is manifested in works pleasing to God (John 1:12; Ephesians 2:8, 9; Titus 2:11-14; 3:5).

THE CHURCH

We believe that the Church is a spiritual organism made up of all born again believers regardless of their denominational or organizational affiliation. We believe that the local church is the visible manifestation of this spiritual organism. We believe in the equal standing of male and female before Christ with unique God-given roles in the local church and in marriage. We believe that the office of elder/pastor, as under-shepherds of the Chief Shepherd, is to be filled by men who meet the qualifications listed in Scripture (Ephesians 1:22-23; 5:25-27; 1 Corinthians 12:12-14; Galatians 3:26-29; 1 Timothy 2:11-15; Ephesians 5:22-33; Titus 2:3-5; 1 Peter 5:1-4, 1 Timothy 3:1-7).

THE RESURRECTION AND FINAL STATE

We believe in the bodily resurrection of the just and the unjust. We believe in the everlasting blessedness of the saved and the everlasting, conscious punishment of the unsaved (Mark 9:43-48; Revelation 20:4-6, 10-15; 22:3-5, 11).

SUBMISSION TO SCRIPTURE

Montana Bible College shall conform to biblical truth in all its policies, standards, and practices. Biblical truth is discovered and determined through a literal historical/grammatical interpretation of Scripture.

"He saved us, not because of righteous things we had done, but because of His mercy. He saved us through the washing of rebirth and renewal by the Holy Spirit..." Titus 3:5

ACCREDITATION

Montana Bible College is accredited by the Association for Biblical Higher Education Commission on Accreditation (5850 T. G. Lee Blvd., Ste. 130, Orlando, FL 32822, 407.207.0808) to grant certificates and degrees at the Baccalaureate level.

GRADUATION AND PLACEMENT RATES

The mission of Montana Bible College is equip future Christian leaders to be gospel-centered disciple-makers for the glory of God and the advancement of His Church. This mission means that MBC not only strives to train up vocational ministry workers such as pastors and missionaries but also non-paid disciple-makers in God's kingdom whose primary occupation may be homemaking, farming, business, etc. Therefore, don't be misled by our placement numbers, but understand them in light of our mission!

Bachelor's degree placement statistics are gleaned from the most recent graduate survey conducted in 2022 of all MBC graduates. Graduates married to people in full-time or bi-vocational ministry are considered "placed in the field" as well.

Serving in vocational or bi-vocational ministry	.37%
Serving in local church	.84%
Serving in ministries	.47%
Serving in community	.39%
Discipling another person	.80%

According to the Student Right to Know (SRTK) Act, Montana Bible College publishes graduation rates for its Certificate in Biblical Studies and Bachelor of Arts programs. Graduation rates are calculated by following a cohort, or group of students who are full-time students for the first time in any college that are degree or certificate seeking. The cohort from each school is tracked over a period of time. Completers are measured by those in the cohort who have earned their degree in 150% of the normal time to completion (i.e. 6 years for a 4 year program). The transfer-out rate is the percentage of students in the entering cohort who are known to have transferred to another institution within 150% of the normal completion time for the program.

Starting Cohort(s)	Degree Program	Graduation Rate	Transfer Rate
Fall 16 Fall 17	Bachelor of Arts in Biblical Studies	64%	9%
Fall 16 – Fall 17	Certificate in Biblical Studies	0%	0%

LIBRARY

The Gail Horton Library is located on the campus alongside classrooms and administrative offices. The library includes study spaces and a conference room. The library houses the largest academic theological library in the state of Montana (15,000 books). The value of a theological library affords the opportunity for integration and learning through the interaction and the whole of Christian thought. Libraries serve as the memory keepers of the body of Christ through the preservation and stewardship of resources.

Gail Horton Library offers:

- A comfortable place for group or individual study with Wi-Fi availability.
- An online catalog available at www.montanabiblecollege.edu/library.
- Inter-library loan services through membership with the Montana Shared Catalog library consortia.
- Access to several biblical and theological journal databases.
- Reference service from qualified staff, and one-on-one writing assistance through the writing center.

"Do your best to present yourself to God as one approved, a worker who does not need to be ashamed and who correctly handles the word of truth." 2 Timothy 2:15

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MBC's philosophy is that an education which prepares students for Christian service should not be available only to those who choose to go into debt or to those who can afford it by their own means. Nor should graduates be hindered in their ministry endeavors by student loan payments. Furthermore, MBC believes it is important to help committed students *complete* their educations, not just *begin* them. That is why we have chosen to keep our tuition cost low and why students who pursue financial aid tend to receive more assistance the longer they attend MBC.

TITLE IV ELIGIBILITY

For the sake of clarity, please be advised that MBC has deliberately chosen not to participate in the federal financial aid program. The College wishes to remain free of any dependency on federal aid money, to avoid the "strings" that are attached to the federal aid program, and to do all in our power to protect our students from becoming encumbered with indebtedness.

Even without *participating* in the federal aid program, Montana Bible College is still able to benefit from being *eligible*. MBC is recognized as an eligible institution under the Higher Education Act of 1965 (HEA), as amended, so our students may receive deferments under federal student loan programs, and so the institution may apply to participate in federal HEA programs other than student financial aid programs, including the Hope and Lifetime Learning Tax Credits. This means that MBC's students receive the following benefits:

- MBC students may defer payment of student loans they've incurred while attending other schools.
- MBC students are able to take advantage of the tax benefits of attending a federally eligible institution, including deducting funds spent on tuition at MBC. MBC issues form 1098-T to each student at the end of the calendar year to provide proof of expenses and scholarship income related to attendance at Montana Bible College.
- MBC students are able to use Hope and Lifetime Learning credits (IRS Form 8863).
- MBC students may be eligible for regional and national scholarships that are only available to students attending federally eligible institutions.

VETERANS BENEFITS

Due to recent government legislation, MBC is no longer eligible to offer any Veterans Educational Benefits. MBC is working to resolve this current situation. For further questions or information, please contact the MBC Finance Office. General information regarding VA educational benefits can be found at https://benefits.va.gov/gibill/.

SCHOLARSHIPS

The goal of the scholarship program at Montana Bible College is to provide funds to students whose heart for God, long-term commitment to ministry, academic performance, and financial need warrant assistance from the College. Students who receive scholarship funds from MBC should compel the College to invest in their lives. We believe strongly in the personal responsibility of each student to plan for and be able to pay the cost of choosing to be a student. Further, we believe that graduates should not be hindered from fulfilling the

ministry to which God has called them because of the burden of college debts; therefore, MBC is committed to providing quality education at an affordable cost. Since MBC's tuition only covers a portion of its operating expenses, this education is only possible because God has placed generosity in the hearts of individuals, churches, and alumni who believe in the eternal value of Bible college education. These people are passing on a trust to our students because they expect God to do great things through them.

MBC does not accept any direct or indirect federal financial aid. Why? The cost of administering Title IV funding in small schools like MBC is greater than the funds students would receive from federal financial aid. More significantly than the pragmatic reason, accepting student loans can create an unhealthy institutional dependence on money that may not always be there, and loans become a significant burden and hindrance to ministering where God wants His people. Montana Bible College wants God to receive the glory for assisting our students in their education! Thus, MBC offers scholarships based on the funds available for students who meet the following criteria:

SCHOLARSHIP ELIGIBILITY

The following are requirements for students seeking to receive scholarship funds from Montana Bible College.

- 1. Students must be enrolled for at least nine (9) credits each semester toward the completion of either the Bible Certificate or the B.A. in Biblical Studies degree program. Financial awards are based on full-time status (12 credits) and will be prorated based on registered credits. For example, a student is awarded a \$500 scholarship for the semester. If the student registers for 12 or more credits, the student receives the entire \$500. If the student is registered for only 10 credits, the award is \$415 (500*10/12). Dropping below nine credits at any point during the semester will make a student ineligible for scholarship funds and the College may expect the student to pay back the awarded funds.
- 2. Students must demonstrate Christ-like character both on and off campus.
- 3. Students must maintain GPA requirements. (General requirements are to maintain at least a 2.0. Additional GPA requirements exist for individual honor scholarships.)

Montana Bible College does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, or national/ethnic origin in the administration of our educational policies, admissions policies, scholarship programs, or other school-administered programs.

SUPPORTING CHURCH SCHOLARSHIPS

MBC Matching Scholarship – MBC anticipates that all students will apply to their home church for a scholarship to assist in managing the costs of attending college. A person's home church is normally very supportive of ministry training for one of its own students. MBC has made available an application for students to present to their churches that outlines the College's philosophy of ministry and financial aid. This may be a very helpful resource for a student seeking the assistance of his or her home church. MBC will match any scholarships from a student's home church up to \$1,000 per year. This matching grant is available to new students and renewable on an annual basis for up to four years based on the church's continued support (the church is invited to give as much as it can). Students must be enrolled for at least nine (9) credits. The application is available at the MBC office or www.montanabiblecollege.edu.

MERIT SCHOLARSHIPS

ELIZABETH O'REAR MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP:

In memory of Elizabeth O'Rear, the O'Rear family has graciously provided a scholarship in the amount of \$1,000 (\$500 per semester). In order to be eligible for this scholarship, the applicant must be a returning student of junior or senior standing, have and maintain at least a 3.25 GPA, and currently be involved in ministry with plans to pursue vocational ministry after graduation.

RON WARD AND FOUNDERS MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP:

In memory of Ron Ward, one of the founders of Montana Bible College, MBC has designated a scholarship fund in his name. This scholarship in the amount of \$1,000 (\$500 per semester) is awarded to returning students who demonstrate servant-hearted leadership, love for God's people, and a passion to serve Him in ministry.

CHAMBERLIN GREEK SCHOLARSHIP:

Funded by the Chamberlin family, this scholarship is available the fall that Greek III is taught. In order to be eligible for this scholarship, the applicant must have passed both Greek I and II with at least a 2.0 GPA and be enrolled in Greek III with the intent to take Greek IV. This scholarship is awarded based on the student's interest in pursuing the Greek language and demonstration of financial need.

MBC RURAL SHEPHERD SCHOLARSHIP:

Supporters of rural ministry have made this scholarship available at Montana Bible College for the student who demonstrates servant-hearted leadership and a passion to serve in rural ministry. The student must be at least junior standing, be in the pastoral emphasis, maintain a 3.0 grade point average, and have a heart and focus for rural pastorates. This tuition-only scholarship of \$1,500 (\$750 per semester) may be given to a student less than full-time if the student meets the other criteria and is pursuing the pastorate in a rural ministry.

GWENDOLYN GRACIE SCHOLARSHIP:

Established in honor of Gwendolyn Gracie, a long-time educator who had the heart for those in ministry in the rural areas, both local and global, this scholarship focuses on the Missions or Pastoral emphasis students. This tuition-only \$2,500 scholarship can be successive for the student if the student maintains the following qualifications: full-time status (exceptions may be made for a semester in which course offerings and student course needs total fewer than 12 credits), declared emphasis of Missions or Pastoral, a 3.0 grade point average, active in a current ministry, demonstration of a financial need, and have a heart for rural ministry. In the year following the receipt of the scholarship, \$1,000 will be payable in the fall semester, and \$1,500 will be payable in the spring semester.

Don & Mary Ann Hostetler Scholarship:

The children of Don and Mary Ann Hostetler established this scholarship to honor their parents who have a heart for Christian education and the impact MBC graduates have in their local communities. This \$1,000 (\$500 per semester) scholarship focuses on the sophomore student who is currently active in a ministry.

APPLYING FOR SCHOLARSHIPS

Students will complete MBC's comprehensive scholarship application (available online at www.montanabiblecollege.edu or through the business office). The **application deadline** for returning students to apply for fall semester scholarships is April 15th for honors scholarships or June 15 for need-based scholarships. For spring semester scholarships, the deadline is December 1st (not required for those who completed the application in the fall). Please direct any questions to the business office at 406-586-3585.

SCHOLARSHIP AWARDS AND NOTIFICATION

Montana Bible College uses a fair and objective method to distribute scholarship funds. Students may be awarded more than one scholarship, but up to no more than 50% of tuition costs unless otherwise stated. External scholarships will not be calculated into this maximum. Awards will be made in a timely manner following the application deadline. All scholarship applicants will be notified in writing regarding the award amount.

ACADEMIC INFORMATION

POLICIES

ACADEMIC CALENDAR

The academic calendar provides 16 weeks in the fall semester and 17 weeks in each spring semester, including one week set aside for spring break. A Day of Prayer is scheduled during each semester. A current academic calendar is found on the MBC website.

ACADEMIC STUDENT LOAD

The normal student load is 15 semester credits. Courses will demand approximately the following weekly workload outside of class:

100 level classes
200-300 level classes
400 level classes
1 ½ hours per credit
400 level classes
up to 2 hours per credit

STUDENT CLASSIFICATION

Full-time students are those taking at least 12 credit hours of study during a semester. Students taking fewer than 12 credit hours during a semester are considered part-time. All students are expected to choose a degree emphasis by the time they have earned 30 credits, the end of their freshman year.

Class standing for students is determined on the basis of the following:

Freshman	successfully completed 30 or fewer semester credits
Sophomore	successfully completed 31 to 64 semester credits
Junior	successfully completed 65 to 96 semester credits
Senior	successfully completed 97 to 128 (or more) semester credits

ACADEMIC PROBATION AND SUSPENSION

Whenever a student's semester GPA falls below 2.00, the record of the student's performance is reviewed by the academic committee. The committee meets between semesters to consider action on students who are struggling academically. This committee has the authority 1) to suspend a student from the College for scholastic reasons; 2) to place a student on probation for scholastic reasons; and 3) to reinstate a student who has been suspended for scholastic reasons. A member of the academic committee will notify students in writing of the action agreed upon by the committee. The designation of **probation** or **suspension** will be entered on the student's permanent record. The guidelines are as follows:

- 1. **Academic Probation** Students will be placed on academic probation when their semester GPA falls below 2.00. The following apply to students on probation:
 - a. Required participation in the Academic Coaching and Training for Students (ACTS).

- b. Limitation of credit load to 12 credits The Vice President of Academic Affairs reserves the option of approving individual classes.
- c. No independent study classes.
- d. No internships for the probationary semester or the following semester.
- e. No involvement in extracurricular activities including (but not limited to) worship team or resident assistant.
- 2. **Academic Suspension** Students who are on academic probation for two consecutive or three total semesters will automatically be suspended for the next semester, meaning they will not be able to attend the college for that semester. The following apply to students on academic suspension:
 - a. All scholarship monies terminate All supporting bodies will be notified of the student's withdrawal from MBC.
 - b. Returning to MBC requires a revised re-application process with new references indicating a renewed commitment to academic success.
 - c. Upon return to MBC, all the mandates of probation listed above would apply.
 - d. Any additional probation is an automatic suspension for one year.
 - e. Residence in MBC housing would terminate upon being placed on suspension.
- 3. **Student Leadership Participation** Any student receiving a grade of "F" in any individual class will, in the subsequent semester, be precluded from participating in any of MBC's student leadership roles, including worship teams and resident assistant.

GRADING SYSTEM

Evaluation of student achievement is determined by the scale to the right. Also included are quality points or GPA in green:

MINIMUM SUCCESS STANDARDS

Internships must be passed with a minimum grade of "C". Each emphasis specifies certain key courses which must be passed with at least a "B" in order to graduate in that emphasis. These are listed under "notes" with each emphasis. Lower grades require repeating the course or internship.

A+	99-100 4.0	B-	86-88 2.7	D	70-72 1.0
Α	96-98 4.0	C+	83-85 2.3	D-	65-69 0.7
A-	94-95 3.7	С	80-82 2.0	F	64 or below 0.0
B+	91-93 3.3	C-	76-79 1.7		
В	89-90 3.0	D+	73-75 1.3		

CREDIT TRANSFER POLICY

Montana Bible College desires to be generous to encourage transfer students as they pursue their academic pursuits at Montana Bible College. Montana Bible College will allow a student to transfer credits from other accredited schools (USDE, ABHE, Regional or CHEA approved), provided the student presents an official transcript showing grades of C or above in subjects similar in content and credit value to courses in the Montana Bible College curriculum. Regarding AA degrees, Montana Bible College will grant transfer credit for AA degrees. For this, courses taken for an AA degree will be given credit for general education and elective class requirements on a case-by-case situation with much generosity to benefit the student. Transfer students must earn a minimum of 30 credits at Montana Bible College to receive a bachelor's degree through the College.

Please note that freshmen/sophomore level courses (100-200 level) will not transfer as upper-level courses (300-400 level).

CREDIT TRANSFERS FROM NON-ACCREDITED SCHOOLS

Credit transfer from non-accredited schools is subject to validation and occasionally limited to partial credit. Montana Bible College currently has credit transfer articulation agreements with 20 schools: Adelphia Bible School in Ravensdale, Washington; Alaska Bible Institute in Homer, Alaska; Camp Bighorn in Plains, Montana; Cornerstone Bible Institute, Hot Springs, SD; Ecola Bible School in Canon Beach, Oregon; Free Lutheran Bible School in Plymouth, Minnesota; Gather 4 Him Christian College in Richland, Washington; His Hill Bible School in Comfort, Texas; Hope School of the Bible, Grand Forks, ND; Jackson Hole Bible College in Jackson Hole, Wyoming; Montana Wilderness School of the Bible in Augusta, Montana; Ethnos360 Bible Institute in Jackson, Michigan; Nicolet Bible Institute in White Lake, Wisconsin; Pacific Bible College in Medford, Oregon; Ravencrest Chalet in Estes Park, Colorado; Solid Rock Discipleship Program in Long Prairie, Minnesota; Southland Bible Institute in Ashland, Kentucky; Timberline Lodge Bible School in Winter Park, Colorado; Veritas Bible Institute in Pocatello, Idaho; and Word of Life Bible Institute in Pottersville, New York.

Upon receipt of a transfer student's official transcript on a one-year attendance from an above listed school, Montana Bible College will be very generous in transferring credits of C or above to equal one year (30 credits) of study towards Montana Bible College courses. For a second year of study at one of the above listed schools, a transfer student can expect additional credits to transfer depending on the course of study at Montana Bible College. Each transfer student is evaluated based on the transferable credits as to what foundational courses may still be needed for academic success at Montana Bible College. For further questions about transferring credits, please contact the Registrar's Office.

CREDIT TRANSFERS FROM QUARTER SYSTEM SCHOOLS

Credits taken under the quarter system transfer to the semester system at 3/5 value. A 5-credit class in the quarter system is worth 3 credits in the semester system. To make allowances for classes taken on a quarterly basis at other universities, the MBC academic committee may allow slight redistribution of the required credits between categories, provided the total semester hours equal the number required for the student's emphasis. For example, a student with seven hours of English may reduce the hours needed in social science to five.

CORRESPONDENCE CREDIT

Credit earned by correspondence studies through an accredited college or university may be accepted toward a bachelor's degree up to a maximum of 30 credits upon receipt of an official transcript. Not more than 15 credit hours may be applied toward the fulfillment of general education requirements. Not more than 15 credits of correspondence studies may be applied toward the fulfillment of theology or biblical studies requirements. To be sure a correspondence course will apply toward the fulfillment of the four-year degree requirements, the student is encouraged to contact the registrar. Appeals and special requests must be made in writing to the academic committee.

INDEPENDENT STUDY

Students may earn up to 12 credits toward a bachelor's degree through independent study courses at Montana Bible College. Allowance for independent study courses is made to serve unique or extenuating circumstances, especially to remove obstacles to academic progress toward graduation. These classes are typically limited to juniors and seniors in good academic standing. In cases of course schedule conflicts, students should be enrolled in required courses as priority over elective courses. Hybrid options are usually preferred to independent studies. Students wishing to enroll in an independent study class must have the consent of the MBC instructor teaching the course. Additionally, the student must meet with the Vice President of Academic Affairs for approval. Requests for independent study courses are due at least two weeks prior to registration. Request forms may be obtained from the registrar's office.

ADVANCED STANDING

Montana Bible College awards general education credit toward a four-year degree for successful performance in examinations of the College Level Examination Program (CLEP). A maximum of 15 credits of general education credit may be accepted, but CLEP credits will not be counted toward fulfilling the requirements in speech communication and college writing. Credits earned through CLEP examinations do not count in the student's GPA. Montana Bible College does not administer these exams; students may arrange to take CLEP examinations at designated centers throughout the country, including one located on the campus of Montana State University–Billings. For more information about this CLEP test center, call (406) 657-2158.

Students may also gain advanced standing through documented professional experience which relates to their program of study. Advanced standing through professional experience will be granted for internship and some general education courses. Credit for advanced standing through professional experience will not be counted in the student's GPA. Students wishing to request advanced standing through professional experience must petition the academic committee for approval. Once granted approval, the student must register for the petitioned course and pay 2/3 the tuition rate.

AUDIT POLICY

Montana Bible College encourages students to take courses for full credit. However, MBC will allow auditing on a space-available basis by registering during the first week of class. An audited course is not counted as part of the student's academic load.

Tuition for an audited course is \$200 per course. A student auditing a course is considered a regular participant in the class, except that there is no requirement to turn in written assignments or take examinations. At the end of the semester, an "AU" is entered on the student's transcript.

A student who has enrolled in a course and wishes to change to an audit must petition the Vice President of Academic Affairs for approval during the *first four weeks of classes*. If approved, the student will receive a refund of the difference in tuition cost according to the refund schedule in the catalog. The change to audit is permanent; therefore, a student who wants to take an audited course for credit must retake the entire course. No courses may be changed to audit after the fourth week.

REGISTRATION FOR COURSES

MBC students register for their courses online using MBC's Populi software. New students will receive first-time login information and registration instructions during their enrollment. Students needing assistance with the registration process may contact the registrar's office with any questions. Class pre-registration dates are: April 1 - August 1 for fall semester and November 1 - December 15 for spring semester. There is a \$10.00 per course fee for students (except audit classes) who drop a course after registration day.

WITHDRAWAL FROM A COURSE

Withdrawal from a course is permitted through the end of the 10th week of classes. Withdrawals are not complete until the withdrawal form is received by the registrar's office. It is the student's responsibility to complete the withdrawal process and avoid continued registration and a subsequent failing grade in the class.

FAILURE TO PASS A COURSE

If a student earns an "F" in a class, the course must be re-taken in its entirety. The student must register for the class again, pay the tuition fee, attend the class, and complete all the work as though taking the class for the first time. Success the second time will result in the new, passing grade showing on the student transcript.

INCOMPLETE WORK

Should an unforeseen situation arise where a student is unable to complete the required work for a course in which he or she is enrolled, that student, in order to avoid a poor or failing grade, must meet with the instructor of the course and discuss the circumstances and options available for completing the missing assignments. There is a "grace period" that may be extended to students who find themselves in such circumstances. An instructor *may* choose to report a student's grade as "I" (incomplete) for up to two weeks after the end of the semester. At this time, unless a further extension is granted, the incomplete grade for a course will be changed to the grade earned (with zeros recorded for missing work) by the end of the semester in which the student was enrolled in the course. Requests for extension past the two weeks may be made to the academic committee through the registrar's office by the end of the semester. A temporary mark of "I" is used on transcripts when an extension is granted.

MONTANA BIBLE COLLEGE DUAL ENROLLMENT PROGRAM

High School students in 11th and 12th grade may enroll for college credit at Montana Bible College. Students in 9th and 10 grade will be considered for admission to dual enrollment on an individual basis. To apply for dual enrollment, students need to:

- Complete the Dual Enrollment Admission Form on our website at montanabiblecollege.edu. Students born after December 31, 1956, must submit proof of two MMR immunizations via signed statement from a healthcare provider or a Religious Exemption according to Montana law MCA.
- 2. Submit an official high school or home school transcript with a GPA of 2.0 or better on a 4.0 scale.
- 3. Have your pastor (senior, associate, youth, or other spiritual mentor) complete and submit to MBC the Pastor's Recommendation Form. Please note that the person completing the form cannot be related to the student.
- 4. Have your parent complete and submit the Parent Approval Form.
- 5. Participate in an orientation for MBC dual enrollment students.

INTERNSHIPS

Every student pursuing a bachelor's degree at Montana Bible College is required to complete an internship related to his/her major or emphasis. This internship is a vital component of the student's education. The internship is a guided field experience intended to bring together in a "real-life" setting the knowledge and skills the student acquired through academic study. The internship is a course for which a student is registered in a given semester and has requirements which he/she must fulfill for a grade.

One of the most significant challenges students face in preparing for an internship is finding an internship. If a student does not have a specific internship in mind, MBC can help. The Office of Academic Affairs regularly makes formal agreements with various churches, ministries, and organizations to provide such opportunities for MBC students. Therefore, we encourage students to see the Vice President of Academic Affairs about specific internship opportunities for their emphases or majors.

INTERNSHIP POLICY

Montana Bible College requires that a student achieve Junior standing before applying for an internship. Exceptions to this policy must be approved by the Vice President of Academic Affairs.

The internship for the Missions emphasis is twelve credits and encompasses the entirety of the fall semester of the student's senior year. The internship for all other majors and emphases is typically four credits.

PROCEDURES FOR APPLYING AND SERVING INTERNSHIPS

- 1. Pick up an Internship Packet from the Registrar's Office. This packet will contain the following materials:
 - a. Requirements for the specific internship
 - b. Application for internship
 - c. Agreement to Enlist
 - d. Internship Supervisor's Initial Report
 - e. Intern's First Report
 - f. Internship Supervisor's Final Report
 - g. Intern's Final Report
 - h. Internship Checklist
- 2. Read the Internship Requirements contained in the Packet first.
- 3. Complete the Application for Internship (the grey form) and have it signed by the Emphasis Chair, Vice President of Academic Affairs, and the prospective Internship Supervisor. Note: the application must be signed by these individuals prior to registration for the internship as a course. Only when these signatures are obtained is the application completed. After obtaining these three signatures, the student shall submit the application to the Registrar who will then register the student for the internship as a class.

- 4. Complete the Agreement to Enlist in a meeting with the Vice President of Academic Affairs, the emphasis chair, and the Internship Supervisor, and submit it to the Registrar.
- 5. Half-way through the internship, the intern shall complete and submit the "Intern's First Report" included in the Packet to the Vice President of Academic Affairs. Likewise, the Internship Supervisor shall complete and submit the Internship Supervisor's Initial Report to the Vice President of Academic Affairs.
- 6. At the end of the internship, both the intern and the Internship Supervisor shall complete a final report, using the forms in the Packet, and submit them to the Vice President of Academic Affairs.
- 7. After the Vice President of Academic Affairs gives approval of the final reports, the Registrar enters the grade on the student's transcript.

GRADUATION

GRADUATION HONORS AND AWARDS

A student may graduate Summa Cum Laude (with highest honors) by earning a cumulative grade point average of 3.9 or above, Magana Cum Laude (with high honors) by earning a cumulative grade point average of 3.7 to 3.8, and Cum Laude by earning a cumulative grade point average of 3.5 to 3.6.

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

In order to graduate, a student must:

- 1. Demonstrate Christ-like character in accordance with the goals of Montana Bible College.
- 2. Successfully complete at least 128 credits, including the courses required for his or her program.
- 3. Earn a minimum of 30 credits at Montana Bible College. These must include at least 9 hours in theology.
- 4. Complete *all* coursework, including the required internship.
- 5. Pass all required courses with a grade of "D" or above.
- 6. Earn a cumulative grade point average of 2.0 or above.
- 7. Successfully pass the Ministry Competency Exam.
- 8. Meet all financial obligations.
- 9. Attend the commencement exercises.

Note: Starting in the 2023-2024 academic year, anyone who has no more than 9 credits to complete may walk at graduation.

ACADEMIC SUPPORT

ACADEMIC CULTURE TRAINING FOR STUDENTS (ACTS)

Occasionally some students may need additional support to achieve academic success. These needs may be evidenced through a review of a new student's transcript, a mid-term progress report, referral by a professor, alert/probationary status, or by self-declaration. The mission of ACTS is to provide additional help to students, so they achieve academic success. The primary avenue for assistance is a one-on-one meeting with an academic

coach who will work individually with the student to determine a plan of action. Students selected for participation in the program will be notified by the Vice President of Academic Affairs. If a student earns an "F" in a class, receiving credit for that class requires a complete re-taking of the class. The student must register for the classes again, pay the tuition fee, attend the class and complete all the work as though taking the class for the first time. Success the second time will result in the new, passing grade showing on the student transcript.

ACTS MISSION

The mission of the Academic Culture Training for Students (ACTS) is to provide additional help to students so they may achieve academic success. A. In keeping with our purpose to glorify God through biblical higher education by training men and women for a lifetime of dynamic Christian living and service, Montana Bible College is committed to helping all students succeed in their classes. B. One of our primary objectives for MBC students is to train them to study and interpret the Scriptures. Some of our students may demonstrate difficulty in their study skills and ability to comprehend required reading assignments.

ACTS LOCATION AND DIRECTOR

The Gail Horton Library serves as the central location for all academic coaching related to ACTS. All ACTS participants will go to the same central, public location for the academic coaching they need from the ACTS Director, or the coach he/she may assign.

ACTS AND MBC WRITING LABS

Writing labs will take place in the Gail Horton Library and will serve as a central part of ACTS. Participation in writing labs must be included in the specific plan of assistance drafted and agreed upon by the ACTS Director 27 and the student (see below). In this regard, the ACTS Director will fill out a referral slip which the student must take to the writing lab.

IDENTIFICATION FOR PARTICIPATION

Several indicators are used to identify students who may benefit from being included in ACTS. Students considered for participation in the program are as follows: A. Students admitted with recommendation for participation in the program from the admissions committee due to a high school GPA below C (2.0). B. Students returning to MBC on a probationary basis due to being suspended for academic reasons. C. Students admitted on a probationary basis due to being suspended for academic reasons at a previous institution. D. Students whose mid-term progress reports indicate the need for monitoring and coaching. E. Students referred to the program by professors. F. Students who declare they are having difficulty and request additional academic assistance.

NOTIFICATION FOR PARTICIPATION

When a student is identified through one of the above indicators, the Vice President of Academic Affairs notifies the ACTS Director and the student. The ACTS Director is responsible for initiating and engaging with ACTS students. A. Student will meet with the ACTS Director who will determine the student's difficulty. For this, the ACTS Director will use the "Student Academic Notification Form." The information from this form will serve as the basis for a plan for assistance. B. The ACTS Director and students together draft a plan for assistance based on the information from the Student Academic Notification Form. C. The drafted plan for assistance will be attached to an ACTS Student Agreement Form, which the student will sign and date on his/her first meeting

with the ACTS Director. D. The ACTS Director will email copies of the Student Notification Form signed by both the academic coach and the student and send to the Vice President of Academic Affairs and the Registrar.

METHODOLOGY FOR PARTICIPATION

The primary avenue for assistance is one-on-one meetings with the ACTS Director or academic coach who works individually with the student to implement the written plan of action for assistance. This plan includes study skills, learning to take responsibility, time management, reading strategies, note-taking, test taking skills, career planning, budgeting, goal setting and overcoming procrastination among the main topics. The writing coaching which will necessitate the student's participation in the writing lab if that is needed. A. The academic coach normally meets weekly with the student but adjusts the frequency of meetings according to the student's need and at the suggestion of the academic coach. B. The academic coach monitors the students' progress regarding completion of assignments, progress on tests, and general discussion about the student's self-assessment of his/her progress and progress of intervention assigned by the coach. C. The academic coach communicates with the faculty to get feedback regarding the student's progress. D. The academic coach maintains the current syllabi of classes in order to stay abreast of class requirements. E. The academic coach maintains records of meetings with the student, his/her academic progress, and recommendations for future strategy. F. If the ACTS student is participating in the writing lab, the writing coach must provide a monthly report of his/her progress to the ACTS Director, who will include this in his/her monthly report to the Vice President of Academic Affairs and Registrar. G. The ACTS Director/Coach must provide a monthly report of each student's progress (using the Student Academic Notification Form) to the Vice President of Academic Affairs and Registrar.

ACTS Program Topics and Expectations

Students who enter the ACTS program will be assigned individual assignments to complete to help students overcome their barriers to college success.

Each assignment will be discussed and evaluated by the ACTS coach. These assignments include:

Understanding victim vs victor mentality

Learning time management

Managing stress

Overcoming Procrastination

Learning emotional intelligence

Learning to make wise choices

Understanding learning style and effective study skills

Self-Motivation and setting goals

These assignments will be assigned over an eight-week period and upon successful completion, the student will be recommended by the ACTS coach to return to full student status.

ACTS ENTRY PROCESS

All faculty will report by mid-term, those students who are not performing academically or personally according to MBC standards to the ACTS Director through email or through academic warning in Populi.

The Acts Director contacts the students for evaluation to determine the issue(s) the student is dealing with and get them registered into the ACTS course in Populi.

Students will meet with the ACTS Director weekly for eight weeks to discuss assignments and progress.

At the end of eight weeks students will be released to return to full status academically.

If the student fails, the semester they will be required to sit out for one semester.

When the student returns to MBC, they must complete the eight-week ACTS program before they can be reinstated as full time MBC student in good standing.

EXITING THE PROGRAM

It is our goal that students exit the program by demonstrating academic success in their classes. This success may be indicated in several ways. A. Student's grades B. Removal from academic probation status C. Recommendation from the Vice President of Academic Affairs, faculty, and/or academic coach. D. Self-assessment with approval from the Vice-President of Academic Affairs and academic coach. This will only be in cases in which the student self-declared his/her need for ACTS (See "H" under Identification for Participation" above).

OVERALL EVALUATION OF THE PROGRAM

Success of the Student Academic Success Program is determined by academic progress of the participating students as well as student and faculty surveys. A. The academic coach provides a program summary to the Vice President of Academic Affairs at the conclusion of each semester delineating a quantitative analysis of student participation and academic progress. B. Student participants and their professors are surveyed to gather input and recommendations to improve the program.

PARTNER PREP PROGRAM

One goal of Montana Bible College is to help the entire family unit be prepared together for ministry. With that in mind, MBC established Partner Prep so the spouses of degree-seeking MBC students can audit any course free of charge. The spouse will need to register for the courses through the registrar's office and have the waiver signed and submitted to the business office prior to attending the course. The waiver is good only for auditing. If the spouse wants to take the course for credit, he/she must pay the entire cost of the course. If the degree-seeking student drops below nine credits, the spouse is ineligible for auditing that semester.

Montana Bible College will not provide childcare. We suggest the families participating set up a cooperative childcare system amongst themselves.

Spouses who complete the partner prep program will receive a certificate and be recognized at commencement.

"So we fix our eyes not on what is seen, but on what is unseen, since what is seen is temporary, but what is unseen is eternal." 2 Corinthians 4:18

ACADEMIC PROGRAMS

CERTIFICATE IN BIBLICAL STUDIES

The Certificate in Biblical Studies program is designed to give students a solid foundation in the basics of Scripture, Christian living, and ministry. It is ideal preparation for high school graduates who plan to attend a university, university graduates who plan to enter the work force, or students who want a solid biblical foundation to help prepare them for a life of Christian living and service. This program also serves missionary candidates who are required to have at least one year of Bible college education.

To receive the Bible Certificate, a student must successfully complete the following 30 semester hours of prescribed courses. Though courses may be transferred in toward the Bible Certificate to fulfill some of the courses listed below, other MBC courses may not be substituted for these courses to earn the Certificate. This program transfers into the baccalaureate program at MBC allowing the completion of a bachelor's degree in four years. The objectives for the Bible Certificate program are:

- 1. **To grow in foundational biblical and theological knowledge.** Though students may come to us with a general knowledge of the Bible well in hand, we recognize the value of obtaining a comprehensive understanding of all books of the Bible and basic doctrines. This knowledge is intended to ground students firmly in the skills of biblical interpretation and application.
- 2. To learn the basic skills of discipleship with the ultimate goal of service in a local church. In order to carry out the command of "making disciples" in the great commission, students must have a working understanding of how to minister within the church in the manner prescribed by Jesus. A basic theology of discipleship ministry and skills development in how to disciple is introduced.
- 3. **To learn of opportunities for future ministry.** Ministry is expected in the future of every student. The real question is in what capacity they will minister. Students will gain understanding of what is involved in various capacities of full-time ministry in such positions as pastor, missionary, missions support staff, etc. Alongside such exposure, students will also come to an understanding of how they fit in the church, even if they are not in the position of full-time service.

Certificate in Biblical Studies						
Fall Semester				Spring Semester		
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credits	
BS 101	Old Testament Survey(& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3	
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4	
SF 110	Living by Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3	
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2	
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0	
	Total	15		Total	15	

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN BIBLICAL STUDIES

Montana Bible College offers a Bachelor of Arts in Biblical Studies with one of five emphasis options: Pastoral Studies, General Ministry, Missions, Biblical Counseling, or Next Generation. Regardless of the emphasis pursued, the first year of any program is identical to give students a solid biblical foundation and allow them the opportunity to become familiar with each program prior to choosing one course of study. All degree emphases provide a wealth of ministry-related instruction.

MBC CORE CURRICULUM REQUIREMENTS

Each emphasis is built on the foundation of the same **MBC** Core Curriculum Courses (see following table) designed to help students grow in their understanding of Scripture and their commitment to our Lord Jesus Christ. These core courses target specific instructional areas including General Education, Theology, Biblical Studies, Discipleship, and Ministry.

GENERAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS

We believe it is important for our students to learn to engage the lost world they are called to reach with the Gospel and to do so without becoming ensnared by worldly values and philosophies (Matthew 13:24-30). General education credits supply an understanding and awareness of broad areas of history, language arts, sciences, and human development – an essential complement to biblical studies in shaping godly attributes and behavior in today's society. MBC instructs students in biblical and loving responses to and engagement with the people and experiences of a lost and hurting world. MBC has selected courses in each general education discipline to prepare the student specifically for ministry. For example, our History of Western Civilization course teaches students to make the connection between the history they are learning and the Bible's historical background.

Each emphasis in the B.A. program requires at least **30 general education credits** to include courses in Communication, Humanities/Fine arts, Natural Science/Mathematics, and Social/Behavior Sciences. Students who have completed their general education credits at MBC will be able to:

- 1. Understand and interact with varying worldviews in the areas of science, economics, politics, and anthropology.
- 2. Understand and apply budgeting skills to personal accounting, as well as non-profit organizations.
- 3. Communicate clearly in both written and oral forms.
- 4. Evaluate and critically engage major influences in the culture and the Church.

THEOLOGY REQUIREMENTS

Biblical and theological study is at the heart of the educational experience at MBC. The theology requirements are fundamental to the support of the mission of MBC. Each emphasis in the B.A. program offers 21 credits of theology instruction. A minimum of 9 theology credits at the 200 level or higher are required for graduation.

BIBLICAL STUDIES REQUIREMENTS

Bible exposition courses are offered in a systematic rotation to give students a breadth of study in various authors and literary styles.

DISCIPLESHIP REQUIREMENTS

Courses specifically designed for discipleship guide students in ministry training and experience. Students will begin discipleship courses their second year and will continue in these courses until graduation.

MINISTRY REQUIREMENTS

Students will be engaged in ministry training in the classroom and through experience in local churches. The ministry development courses are designed to prepare the student for at least one required internship.

BACHELOR OF ARTS DEGREE PROGRAM OUTCOMES

Students who complete the Bachelor of Arts degree will be able to:

- 1. Understand and explain biblical content and themes. All students of Scripture must be able to understand accurately the purpose of the biblical author in any book of the Bible. Students will also be able to articulate in oral and written form general themes common throughout Scripture.
- **2.** Apply discipleship ministry skills in one-to-one and small group relationships. The skill of training others to "follow me as I follow Christ" (1 Corinthians 11:1) is the essential element to maintaining the church from one generation to the next. Students will learn to follow biblical leadership, model a biblical lifestyle for others to follow, and intentionally reproduce new disciple-makers.
- 3. Provide biblical solutions to counselling issues. Every individual will confront sin in his or her personal life and relationships. The goal of sanctification is to make us more like Christ, and God has appointed means such as counselling to aid us in this process. Counselling is one person biblically guiding another into right thinking and living, and all Christians who desire to serve others will be given by the Lord the opportunity to minister in this way. Both biblical knowledge and the commitment to live and follow that knowledge are prerequisites to leading others to follow Scriptural teaching.
- **4. Evangelize locally and cross-culturally.** Whether it be in a familiar or foreign culture, students must be able to articulate and live the Gospel in such a way that the ultimate purpose of God's glory in all of humanity is clearly heard and seen.
- 5. Demonstrate a maturing commitment to Christ in daily lifestyle. Knowledge is useless if the difference in life is absent. Though students will learn a great deal in their years at Bible college, learning by itself is insufficient. Students will be trained in how to live lives that honor the reputation of the One who saved them. This includes both spiritual and physical areas. The goal of every Christian pursuit is to further the glory of God's name; Bible college education is one of many disciplines used to accomplish the change that will bring about further glory to God.
- 6. Provide sufficient evidence of spiritual and academic growth to pursue further Bible training at a seminary or other institution of higher education. Some MBC graduates will desire to pursue further education. The character, knowledge, and skills learned at Montana Bible College in the Bachelor of Arts degree program will enable these students to thrive in the environments of rigorous academic pursuit.

MBC Core Curriculum Course Listings - includes 30 General Education credits

	Fall Semester			Spring Semester	
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credit
		Freshm	an Year		
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4
SF 110	Living by Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0
	Total	15		Total	15
		Sophom	ore Year		•
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
BS 210-39	Bible Exposition	2	BS 210-39	Bible Exposition	2
EP 201	Introduction To Philosophy	3	LS 210	Effective Oral Communication	3
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	LS 216	Introduction to Economics	2
SF 205	D-Lab – Personal Discipleship	2	SF 206	D-Lab – Disciplined Discipleship	2
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1	TH 201	Doctrine of Scripture & God	3
			PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
	Total	11		Total	13
		Junio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
BC 201	Problems & Procedures in Biblical Counseling	3	BC 304	Biblical Peacemaking	3
BS 310-39	Bible Exposition	2	BS 310-39	Bible Exposition	2
HS 201	Church History – Early Church to 1500	2	HS 202	Church History 1501 – Present	2
SF 305	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2	SF 306	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2
MS 204	Science & Origins	3	TH 302	Doctrine of God the Son	3
TH 301	Doctrine of Humanity, Sin & Salvation	3	PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1			
	Total	16		Total	13
		Senio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
BU 411	Business Administration Skills	2	BS 410-39	Bible Exposition	2
SF 405	D-Lab – Issues in Discipleship	2	MD 401	Rural Church Ministry	2
TH 303	Doctrine of Holy Spirit, Angels & Church	3	SF 406	D-Lab - Issues in Discipleship	2
			TH 402	Doctrine of Future Things	3
			MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0
	Total	7		Total	9

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN BIBLICAL STUDIES EMPHASES

PASTORAL EMPHASIS

The responsibility of leading a congregation as a pastor is a heavy one (James 3:1). In order to serve in a pastoral role, a man must meet the qualifications for elders outlined in Scripture (I Timothy 3:1-7; Titus 1:6-9; I Peter 5:1-4). Because of this, it is imperative that a man who leads the body of Christ be properly equipped to do so in character and skill. With this in mind, MBC developed the pastoral emphasis to train men to serve as pastors in the local church. In addition to a thorough grounding in Scripture, the pastoral emphasis offers training in preaching, biblical counseling, leadership, and biblical languages. MBC specializes in preparing pastors for town-and-country church ministry. Please note that while women are free to take individual courses in this emphasis, as per MBC's convictions affirmed in its doctrinal statement, admission to the pastoral emphasis is reserved for men only.

In addition to the general objectives of the B.A. degree, students completing this emphasis will be able to:

- 1. Competently study Scripture contextually, historically, culturally, and from the original languages.
- 2. Effectively preach and teach in an expository manner from any genre of literature in Scripture.
- 3. Serve a congregation and community in a rural, small-town setting as a caring shepherd.

Leaders in the church must be able to understand the Word of God and communicate it faithfully, accurately, and effectively in the real world where the people they shepherd live. Since biblical culture, language, and history differ from our own, good exegesis as well as valid and relevant application depend upon the student's ability to bridge these gaps. MBC meets this need by teaching courses in the disciplines of hermeneutics, homiletics, and biblical languages. MBC also teaches Bible exposition courses on specific books of Scripture from the various literary genres. Leaders also need to shepherd with purpose, awareness, and wisdom, which is why MBC includes courses on pastoral leadership, rural church ministry, peacemaking, and counseling. The pastoral degree emphasis is detailed in the following chart.

NOTE: In order to graduate in this emphasis, students must earn at least a B in the following courses: Homiletics 1 and 2, Pastoral Leadership, Advanced Pastoral Leadership, and Pastoral Internship. They must also earn at least a C in the following courses: Greek I, II, III, and IV and Hebrew I and II.

Pastoral Emphasis:

	Fall Semester			Spring Semester	
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credit
		Freshm	an Year		
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4
SF 110	Living By Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0
	Total	15		Total	15
	S	ophom	ore Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
EP 201*	Introduction To Philosophy	3	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	LS 210*	Effective Oral Communication	3
MS 204	Science & Origins	3	LS 216	Introduction to Economics	2
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1	PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2	SF 206*	D-Lab – Disciplined Discipleship	2
SF 205*	D-Lab – Personal Discipleship	2	TH 201*	Doctrine of Scripture & God	3
LS 201*	Greek I	3	LS 202*	Greek II	3
	Total	17		Total	16
		Junio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
HS 201*	Church History - Early Church to 1500	2	HS 202*	Church History 1501 - Present	2
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1	PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
BC 201*	Problems & Procedures in Biblical	3	BC 304	Biblical Peacemaking	3
	Counseling				
SF 305*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2	SF 306*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2
TH 301*	Doctrine of Humanity, Sin & Salvation	3	TH 302*	Doctrine of God the Son	3
LS 301*	Greek III	3	LS 302*	Greek IV	3
PS 401	Pastoral Leadership	2	PS 402*	Advanced Pastoral Leadership	2
	Total	16		Total	16
		Senio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
BU 411*	Business Administration Skills	2	MD 401*	Rural Church Ministry	2
SF 405*	D-Lab – Issues in Discipleship	2	MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0
TH 303*	Doctrine of Holy Spirit, Angels & Church	3	SF 406	D-Lab- Issues in Discipleship	2
LS 303*	Hebrew I	2	TH 402*	Doctrine of Future Things	3
PS 301*	Homiletics I	3	LS 304*	Hebrew II	2
			MU 401*	Music in Worship	2
			PS 302*	Homiletics II	3
	1	1		T. Control of the Con	+
			PS 400*	Pastoral Internship	4

Emphasis courses are **Bold**; general education courses are **Red**. Pre-requisites are required for courses marked with an asterisk (*). Consult the course descriptions to see pre-requisite requirements.

PASTORAL EMPHASIS WITH VILLAGE MISSIONS

In keeping with its emphasis on ministry to our region, Montana Bible College provides training for ministry to rural churches. Towards this end, Montana Bible College has established an articulation agreement with Village Missions in which students in MBC's pastoral studies emphasis can participate simultaneously in the "On-Ramp" program of Village Missions. The goal of this special arrangement is to prepare missionaries for rural churches that are in desperate need of biblically trained, and culturally aware pastoral leadership. In this special program, students will receive their academic instruction from Montana Bible College during regular academic year while taking their practical rural missions training through Village Missions' Mentorship and Internship preparation during the summers. To be eligible for this program, one must be accepted to Montana Bible College and undergo the Village Missions application process. For more information about Village Missions, please consult their website at https://villagemissions.org/.

Pastoral Emphasis with Village Missions:

	Fall Semester			Spring Semester	
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credits
		Freshm	an Year		
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4
SF 110	Living By Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0
	Total	15		Total	15
	Summer: Internship: Introduction	on, Orien	tation, Obse	rvation with Village Missions	1
	S	ophom	ore Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
EP 201*	Introduction To Philosophy	3	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	LS 210*	Effective Oral Communication	3
MS 204	Science & Origins	3	LS 216	Introduction to Economics	2
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1	PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2	SF 206*	D-Lab – Disciplined Discipleship	2
SF 205*	D-Lab – Personal Discipleship	2	TH 201*	Doctrine of Scripture & God	3
LS 201*	Greek I	3	LS 202*	Greek II	3
	Total	17		Total	16
	Summer: Revitalizati	ion, Parti	cipation with	h Village Missions	
		Junio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
HS 201*	Church History - Early Church to 1500	2	HS 202*	Church History 1501 - Present	2
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1	PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
BC 201*	Problems & Procedures in Biblical Counseling	3	BC 304	Biblical Peacemaking	3
SF 305*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2	SF 306*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2
TH 301*	Doctrine of Humanity, Sin & Salvation	3	TH 302*	Doctrine of God the Son	3
LS 301*	Greek III	3	LS 302*	Greek IV	3
PS 401	Pastoral Leadership	2	PS 402*	Advanced Pastoral Leadership	2
	Total	16		Total	16
	Summer: Village Mission		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	astoral responsibilities	
		Senio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
BU 411*	Business Administration Skills	2	MD 401*	Rural Church Ministry	2
SF 405*	D-Lab – Issues in Discipleship	2	MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0
TH 303*	Doctrine of HS, Angels, & Church	3	SF 406	D-Lab- Issues in Discipleship	2
LS 303*	Hebrew I	2	TH 402*	Doctrine of Future Things	3
PS 301*	Homiletics I	3	LS 304*	Hebrew II	2
			MU 401*	Music in Worship	2
			PS 302*	Homiletics II	3
		4.0	PS 400*	Pastoral Internship	4
	Total	12		Total	18

Emphasis courses are **Bold**; general education courses are **Red**. Pre-requisites are required for courses marked with an asterisk (*). Village Mission requirements in **Green**. Consult the course descriptions to see pre-requisite requirements.

GENERAL MINISTRY EMPHASIS

Numerous ministries apart from the Sunday sermon await the members of a congregation who are willing to use what the Lord has given them. Sadly, the painful reality is that many churches do not have people in their congregations equipped to minister effectively in these areas. MBC designed the general ministry emphasis to ready God's people for service wherever they find themselves, whether it be Sunday school or summer camp.

By pursuing the general ministry emphasis, students will have the opportunity to examine a broad array of ministries to see which direction the Lord may take them. Students will also learn to follow biblical leadership and give biblical guidance to those who follow them. They will be involved in one-on-one discipleship both in their own lives and in the lives of others.

Students who are pursuing youth ministry, camp ministry, or ministry in a para-church organization can tailor this program to their individual needs.

In addition to the general objectives of the B.A. degree, students completing this emphasis will be able to:

- 1. Provide leadership to ministries of the local body of believers or para-church organizations.
- 2. Demonstrate a breadth of knowledge and skills for a variety of ministries.

The general ministry degree emphasis is detailed in the following chart.

NOTE: MBC electives may be filled through any other class offered at MBC that is not already required for the emphasis. In order to graduate in this emphasis a student must receive at least a B on their internship.

General Emphasis:

	Fall Semester			Spring Semester	
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credits
		Freshm	an Year		
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4
SF 110	Living By Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0
	Total	15		Total	15
		Sophor	ore Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
EP 201*	Introduction To Philosophy	3	LS 216	Introduction to Economics	2
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	LS 210*	Effective Oral Communication	3
MS 204	Science & Origins	3	PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2	SF 206	D-Lab – Disciplined Discipleship	2
SF 205*	D-Lab – Personal Discipleship	2	TH 201*	Doctrine of Scripture & God	3
	MBC Electives	2		MBC Electives	3
	Total	16		Total	16
		Junio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
HS 201*	Church History – Early Church to 1500	2	HS 202*	Church History 1501 - Present	2
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1	PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
SF 305*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2	SF 306*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2
TH 301*	Doctrine of Humanity, Sin & Salvation	3	TH 302*	Doctrine of God the Son	3
BC 201*	Problems & Procedures in Biblical	3	BC 304	Biblical Peacemaking	3
	Counseling				
	MBC Electives	4	MI 401*	Anthropology	2
	Total	17		Total	15
		Senio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
BU 411*	Business Administration Skills	2	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
SF 405*	D-Lab – Issues in Discipleship	2	MD 401*	Rural Church Ministry	2
TH 303*	Doctrine of Holy Spirit, Angels & Church	3	MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0
	MBC Electives	6	SF 406	D-Lab- Issues in Discipleship	2
MD 302	Teaching Children (0-11)	3	TH 402*	Doctrine of Future Things	3
			MD 400*	Ministry Internship	4
			MU 401*	Music in Worship	2
	Total	16	İ	Total	15

Emphasis courses are **Bold**; general education courses are **Red**. Pre-requisites are required for courses marked with an asterisk (*). Consult the course descriptions to see pre-requisite requirements.

MISSIONS EMPHASIS

In fulfillment of the Lord's Great Commission, the mission's emphasis is explicitly designed to prepare students for engaging an unbelieving population with the Gospel. Classes in this emphasis will prepare students to engage at the level of immersion into a foreign culture, as well as inclusion in missions in a culture with which they are familiar. Discipling cross-culturally allows students to be exposed to and gain experience in doing meaningful ministry in the lives of people.

The Missions internship is expanded to do a significant mission to fulfill this requirement. Short-term trips used for internship credits are subject to approval by the Vice President of Academic Affairs.

In addition to the general objectives of the B.A. degree, students completing this emphasis will be able to:

- 1. Understand and differentiate cultural structures and anthropology.
- 2. Prepare for the rudiments of learning a foreign language.
- 3. Observe and functionally engage another culture.
- 4. Apply principles of developing a support team in the area of financial and prayer support.
- 5. Understand the current hot topic issues of missions, particularly the areas of contextualization and local church and para-church relations.

The Missions degree emphasis is detailed in the following chart.

NOTES: (1) MBC electives may be filled through any other class offered at MBC that is not already required for the emphasis. (2) In order to graduate in this emphasis, students must earn at least a B in the prescribed Missions courses and the Missions Internship.

Missions Emphasis:

	Fall Semester			Spring Semester	
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credit
		Freshm	an Year		
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4
SF 110	Living By Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0
	Total	15		Total	15
	S	ophom	ore Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
EP 201*	Introduction To Philosophy	3	LS 210*	Effective Oral Communication	3
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
MS 204	Science and Origins	3	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1	SF 206*	D-Lab – Disciplined Discipleship	2
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2	TH 201*	Doctrine of Scripture & God	3
SF 205*	D-Lab – Personal Discipleship	2	MI 201	Missions Principles	2
TH 303*	Doctrine of Holy Spirit, Angels, Church	3	MI 305	Intro. to Native American Studies	2
	Total	17		Total	15
		Junio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
HS 201*	Church History – Early Church to 1500	2	HS 202*	Church History 1501 - Present	2
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1	PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
BU 411*	Business Administration Skills	2	BC 304	Biblical Peacemaking	3
BC 201*	Problems & Procedures in Biblical Counseling	3	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2	SF 306*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2
SF 305*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2	TH 302*	Doctrine of God the Son	3
TH 301*	Doctrine of Humanity, Sin & Salvation	3	MI 309	Cross Cultural Training	2
MI 307	Church Planting	2	MI 401*	Anthropology	2
557	Total	17		Total	17
			r Year		
MI 410	Missions Internship	12	SF 100	Chapel	0
1411 410	Wissions internsing	12	LS 216	Introduction to Economics	2
			BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
			MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0
			TH 402*	Doctrine of Future Things	3
		1	TH 202	World Religions	2
		1	MI 403*	Spiritual Warfare in Missions	2
			MI 406	TBA	3
			400	MBC Electives	3
		•			

Emphasis courses are **Bold**; general education courses are **Red**. Pre-requisites are required for courses marked with an asterisk (*). Consult the course descriptions to see pre-requisite requirements.

BIBLICAL COUNSELING EMPHASIS

We don't have to look far to see that our culture is full of hurting people; those who have been drastically affected by their own sin and the sin of others. Many are looking for help, hope, anything to bring some meaning to the pain and struggle they've known in their lives. A student pursuing the biblical counseling degree will be thoroughly equipped to provide encouragement, support, and biblical direction to those in need. The focus of the program is not to ready a student to open a counseling clinic, but to have tools to minister within his or her local body of believers.

Discipleship is the key focus of this emphasis. You learn to love the gospel and to lead others to share in the freedom that comes through knowing Christ. You are taught to counsel through biblical study and personal accountability. You are trained to help Christians identify and reject root sins in their character, subsequently replacing old sinful habits with habits of holiness. You learn to demonstrate sympathy and empathy as one who is also in desperate need of grace and on the path of sanctification.

In addition to the general objectives of the B.A. degree, students completing this emphasis will be able to:

- 1. Disciple in an intensive format in the local church with people who have identifiable root sins impacting their habits, emotions, and character.
- 2. Demonstrate sympathy and empathy as one who is also on the path of sanctification.
- 3. Identify and interact with various approaches to spiritual health and growth in sanctification.

For those who desire to take their biblical counseling degree further than lay ministry and pursue vocational opportunities, our counseling degree is the perfect platform for pursuit of graduate studies in Biblical counseling from Christian seminaries. MBC is also a recognized training center for the Association of Certified Biblical Counselors.

The biblical counseling degree emphasis is detailed in the following chart.

NOTES: (1) MBC electives may be filled through any other class offered at MBC that is not already required for the emphasis. (2) In order to graduate in this emphasis, students must earn at least a B in the following courses: Intro to Biblical Counseling, Problems and Procedures in Biblical Counseling, Counseling Observation, and Counseling Internship.

Biblical Counseling Emphasis:

Fall Semester			Spring Semester		
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credit
		Freshm	nan Year		
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4
SF 110	Living By Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0
	Total	15		Total	15
	S	ophom	ore Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
EP 201*	Introduction To Philosophy	3	LS 216	Introduction to Economics	2
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	LS 210*	Effective Oral Communication	3
MS 204	Science and Origins	3	PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1	BC 304	Biblical Peacemaking	3
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
SF 205*	D-Lab – Personal Discipleship	2	SF 206*	D-Lab – Disciplined Discipleship	2
	MBC Electives	2	TH 201*	Doctrine of Scripture & God	3
	Total	16		Total	16
		Junio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
HS 201*	Church History – Early Church to 1500	2	HS 202*	Church History 1501 – Present	2
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1	PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
BS 310-39	Bible Exposition	2	SF 306*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2
SF 305*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2	BS 310-39	Bible Exposition	2
TH 301*	Doctrine of Humanity, Sin & Salvation	3	TH 302*	Doctrine of God the Son	3
BC 201*	Problems & Procedures in Biblical Counseling	3	BC 301*	Models of Sanctification	3
	MBC Electives	3	BC 303*	Counseling Observation	3
	Total	16		Total	16
		Senio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
BU 411*	Business Administration Skills	2	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
SF 405*	D-Lab – Issues in Discipleship	2	MD 401*	Rural Church Ministry	2
TH 303*	Doctrine of Holy Spirit, Angels & Church	3	MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0
BC 302*	Marriage & Family Counseling	3	SF 406	D-Lab- Issues in Discipleship	2
BC 401	Medical Issues in Counseling	3	TH 402*	Doctrine of Future Things	3
BC 402	Critique of Modern Counseling Theory	2		MBC Electives	3
	,,		BC 400*	Counseling Internship	4
				O	

Emphasis courses are **Bold**; general education courses are **Red**. Pre-requisites are required for courses marked with an asterisk (*). Consult the course descriptions to see pre-requisite requirements.

NEXT GENERATION MINISTRY EMPHASIS

A new frontier for discipleship is birthed with each new generation, and as the cutting edge of culture advances with the young, the church must engage the battle for their hearts. At Montana Bible College, we believe that biblical principles of discipleship apply in every generation. Still, discernment is needed to engage the worldview of young men and women. Next generation ministry leaders must be competent to direct today's youth toward spiritual maturity and their broader identity within the church.

The Next Generation Ministry Emphasis equips students to shepherd young people into relationship with Jesus and onward toward maturity in Christ and Kingdom ministry. Students will learn how to apply discipleship principles to young people in the contexts of the local church, camp and adventure ministries, and personal relationships with small groups and individuals. Planned outdoor opportunities are highlighted both as a direct ministry tool and as a paradigm for discipleship by walking with young people through real-life situations.

In addition to the general objectives of the B.A. degree, students completing this emphasis will be able to:

- 1. Lead and direct next generation ministries and leadership teams, both in the local church and parachurch ministries, with a clear emphasis on discipleship and biblical teaching.
- 2. Work within the context of the local church to guide a healthy approach to next generation ministries, understanding a variety of convictional perspectives on how the church should approach ministry to the next generations.
- 3. Engage young people with cultural and worldview wisdom.

The Next Generation Ministry Emphasis is detailed in the following chart.

NOTE: (1) In order to graduate in this emphasis, students must earn at least a B in the following courses: Youth Ministry and Cultural Analysis, and Next Generation Ministry Internship.

Next Generation Ministry Emphasis:

	Fall Semester			Spring Semester	
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credits
		Freshm	an Year		
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4
SF 110	Living By Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0
	Total	15		Total	15
	S	ophom	ore Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	О
EP 201*	Introduction to Philosophy	3	LS 216	Introduction to Economics	2
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	LS 210*	Effective Oral Communication	3
MS 204	Science and Origins	3	PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2	SF 206*	D-Lab – Disciplined Discipleship	2
SF 205*	D-Lab – Personal Discipleship	2	TH 201*	Doctrine of Scripture and God	3
MD 302	Teaching Children	3	OD 201	Theology of Outdoor Discipleship (spring	3
				modular)	
	Total	17		Total	16
		1	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
HS 201*	Church History – Early Church to 1500	2	HS 202*	Church History 1501 – Present	2
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
SF 305*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2	SF 306*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2
TH 301*	Doctrine of Humanity, Sin & Salvation	3	TH 302*	Doctrine of God the Son	3
BC 201*	Problems & Procedures in Bib. Cnslng	3	BC 304	Biblical Peacemaking	3
PS 300	Homiletics I	3	PS 403	Discipling & Counseling Youth	2
PS 401*	Pastoral Leadership	2	PS 402	Advanced Pastoral Leadership (men)	2
			MD 403	Women in Ministry (women)	2
	Total			Total	16
	1	1	r Year	l	
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
PE 110-99	Physical Education	1	PE 110-99	Physical Education	1
BU 411*	Business Administration Skills	2	MD 401*	Rural Church Ministry	2
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2	MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0
SF 405	D-Lab – Issues in Discipleship	2	SF 406	D-Lab- Issues in Discipleship	2
TII 202	Doctrine of Holy Spirit, Angels & Church	3	TH 402*	Doctrine of Future Things	3
TH 303		_			
	MBC Electives	2	PS 406	Youth Ministry in the Local Church	2
TH 303 PS 304		2	MU 401*	Music in Worship	2
	MBC Electives			•	

Emphasis courses are **Bold**; general education courses are **Red**. Pre-requisites are required for courses marked with an asterisk (*). Consult the course descriptions to see pre-requisite requirements.

LANCASTER PARTNERSHIP DEGREES

Students majoring in a Partnership Degree will attend MBC for all four years and receive a Bachelor of Arts from Montana Bible College in the major of their choice. Courses in biblical studies and general education will be taken residentially, while the professional studies component will be taken online through Lancaster Bible College.



ADVISORY NOTE FOR STUDENTS ENROLLED IN LANCASTER PARTNERSHIP DEGREES

Those enrolled in these degree programs should be advised that they will be paying Lancaster's tuition rate for each of the online courses. Moreover, each online course is rather intensive in that it runs for eight weeks meaning that it is intended to accomplish the equivalent of a semester's course within this time frame. Therefore, it is suggested that the student plan his/her semester's schedule carefully in consultation with his/her advisor. Furthermore, a student should count on taking about six to eight credits of MBC courses in a given semester as well as summer Lancaster online courses if he/she wants to finish one of these programs within four years. Furthermore because of the highly specialized nature of some of these programs, the total number of credits required for completion may exceed 128 credits.

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

Through our business administration major, you'll receive a blend of both Bible and business classes, equipping you spiritually and academically to effectively serve in your professional and personal life. Our hands-on learning and practical business training puts our graduating students on equal footing with other candidates applying for entry-level business positions. Our business administration program is truly singular and offers students a unique chance to learn how to integrate their faith into the workplace through Christian education.

	Fall Semester			Spring Semester	
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credits
		Freshm	an Year		
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4
SF 110	Living By Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0
	Total	15		Total	15
	S	ophom	ore Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
EP 201*	Introduction to Philosophy	3	LS 216	Introduction to Economics	2
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	LS 210*	Effective Oral Communication	3
MS 204	Science and Origins	3	SF 206*	D-Lab – Disciplined Discipleship	2
	Physical Education	1		Physical Education	1
SF 205*	D-Lab – Personal Discipleship	2	TH 201*	Doctrine of Scripture and God	3
LBC MAT 218	Applied Business Math	3	LBC BUS 201	Business Ethics	3
LBC BUS 113	Foundations of Accounting	3	LBC BUS 205	Finance	3
	Total	18		Total	17
		Junio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
HS 201*	Church History – Early Church to 1500	2	HS 202*	Church History 1501 – Present	3
SF 305*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2	MI 401	Anthropology	2
TH 301*	Doctrine of Humanity, Sin & Salvation	3	SF 306*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2
	Physical Education	1	TH 302*	Doctrine of God the Son	3
LBC BUS 230	Leadership	3	BC 304	Biblical Peacemaking	3
LBC BUS 302	Marketing	3	LBC BUS 307	Business Law	3
LBC BUS 305	Operations Management	3		Physical Education	1
	Total	17		Total	17
		Senio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
SF 405	D-Lab – Issues in Discipleship	2	TH 402*	Doctrine of Future Things	3
BU 411*	Business Administration Skills	2	MD 401*	Rural Church Ministry or LBC Business	2
				Elective	
TH 303	Doctrine of Holy Spirit, Angels & Church	3	MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0
LBC BUS 402	International Business	3	SF 406	D-Lab- Issues in Discipleship	2
LBC BUS 415	Managerial Economics	3	LBC BUS 425	Personal Finance	3
			LBC BUS 000	LBC Business Elective	3
			LBC BUS 400	Business Internship	4
	Total	13		Total	17
Fmnhasis co	urses are BOLD : general education co	irses ar	e Red Courses	s taken with Lancaster Bible College ha	VP 3

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN COMMUNICATION

If you can't seem to follow enough news outlets on Twitter, listen to the radio and podcasts incessantly, love to analyze commercials, or appreciate good storytelling and the written word, this just might be the right major for you. Plus, there are so many careers in communications. Our communication major will teach you the fundamentals of strong writing, the basics of radio broadcasting in our in-house radio station (an exact replica of local Christian radio station WJTL's setup), introduce you to the world of video production and let you dip your toes into the waters of journalism with our student-run newspaper – and that's just the beginning. Built on a firm foundation of media ethics, theory and practice and Bible classes that teach a solid biblical worldview, students who complete this program will earn a Bachelor of Arts degree with majors in both communication and biblical studies.

Fall Semester				Spring Semester	
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credits
		Freshm	an Year		
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4
SF 110	Living By Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0
	Total	15		Total	15
	S	ophom	ore Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
EP 201*	Introduction to Philosophy	3	LS 216	Introduction to Economics	2
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	LS 210*	Effective Oral Communication	3
MS 204	Science and Origins	3	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
	Physical Education	1	SF 206*	D-Lab – Disciplined Discipleship	2
SF 205*	D-Lab – Personal Discipleship	2	TH 201*	Doctrine of Scripture and God	3
LBC COM 212	Media: Conveyor of Ideas	3		Physical Education	1
	MBC Elective Credits	3	LBC COM 201	Communication Ethics	3
	Total	18		Total	16
		Junio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
HS 201*	Church History – Early Church to 1500	2	HS 202*	Church History 1501 – Present	2
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2		Physical Education	1
SF 305*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2	SF 306*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2
TH 301*	Doctrine of Humanity, Sin & Salvation	3	TH 302*	Doctrine of God the Son	3
	Physical Education	1	MI 401	Anthropology	2
LBC COM 202	Principles and Practices	3	LBC COM 320	Survey of Marketing	3
LBC COM 311	Writing for News Media	3	LBC COM 330	Survey of Web Design	3
	Total	16		Total	16
		Senio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
SF 405	D-Lab – Issues in Discipleship	2	BS 310-389	Bible Exposition	2
BU 411*	Business Administration Skills	2	MD 401*	Rural Church Ministry	2
TH 303	Doctrine of Holy Spirit, Angels & Church	3	MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0
LBC COM 340	Writing on Social Issues	3	SF 406	D-Lab- Issues in Discipleship	2
LBC COM 350	Writing for Publication	3	TH 402*	Doctrine of Future Things	3
			MU 401`	Music in Worship	2
			LBC COM 470	Senior Communication Project	3
			LBC COM 450	Communication Internship	4
	Total	13		Total	18

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN CRIMINAL JUSTICE

The criminal justice program will prepare students to fill redemptive roles in our larger society. We. Have designed courses, internship, student work, and instructor interaction to help students promote biblical justice and the love of Christ in service to people in public spaces. Students will take classes in areas of Criminal Justice, which focus on law enforcement and corrections, and of legal studies, which focus on legal reasoning and provides exposure for those interested in the legal profession. Through academic rigor and hands on training, Christian professionals in LBC's criminal justice program teach students how to live out the Gospel in society, excel in their chosen fields, and strengthen their faith for the work to which God calls them.

	Fall Semester			Spring Semester	
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credits
		Freshm	an Year		
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4
SF 110	Living By Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0
	Tota	al 15		Total	15
		Sophom	ore Year		<u>'</u>
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
EP 201*	Introduction to Philosophy	3	LS 216	Introduction to Economics	2
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	LS 210*	Effective Oral Communication	3
MS 204	Science and Origins	3	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
	Physical Education	1	SF 206*	D-Lab – Disciplined Discipleship	2
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2	TH 201*	Doctrine of Scripture and God	3
SF 205*	D-Lab – Personal Discipleship	2	LBC CRJ	Introduction to Law Enforcement	3
			102		
LBC CRJ 101	Introduction to Criminal Justice	3		Physical Education	1
	Tota	al 17		Total	16
		Junio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
HS 201*	Church History – Early Church to 1500	2	HS 202*	Church History 1501 – Present	2
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2	SF 306*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2
SF 305*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2	TH 302*	Doctrine of God the Son	3
TH 301*	Doctrine of Humanity, Sin & Salvation	3	BC 304	Biblical Peacemaking	3
LBC CRJ 202	Corrections and Punishment	3	MI 401	Anthropology	2
LBC CRJ 203	American Judicial System	3	LBC CRJ 215	Soul Care for the Criminal Justice Professional	3
	Physical Education	1		Physical Education	1
	Tota	al 16		Total	16
		Senio	r Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
BU 411*	Business Administration Skills	2	SF 406	D-Lab- Issues in Discipleship	2
SF 405	D-Lab – Issues in Discipleship	2	TH 402*	Doctrine of Future Things	3
TH 303	Doctrine of Holy Spirit, Angels & Church	3	MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0
LBC CRJ 222	Juvenille Justice System and Administration	3	LBC CRJ 310	Constitutional Law and Criminal Procedure	3
LBC CRJ 304	Criminology	3	LBC CRJ 311	Ethical Issues in Criminal Justice	3
			LBC CRJ 400	Criminal Justice Internship	4
			LBC CRJ 422	Race, Class, and Criminal Justice	3
	Tota	al 13	i	Total	18

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN HEALTHCARE MANAGEMENT

Becoming a health care manager means you'll have plenty of options once you graduate. This program touches on areas of math, science and policy, allowing you to transition from school to a job at a doctor's office, handling the day-to-day functions of a typical small private practice, step into law reform in DC by working as a public health lobbyist or enter the lucrative world of pharmaceutical sales. Our undergraduate degree in healthcare management also prepares you to continue your education through graduate studies. The possibilities are almost endless – it just depends on what you want to do!

Fall Semester			Spring Semester			
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credits	
		Freshm	nan Year			
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3	
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4	
SF 110	Living By Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3	
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2	
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0	
	Total	15		Total	15	
	Summe	r: LBC SCI	340 Chemistry (4)			
			nore Year			
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0	
EP 201*	Introduction to Philosophy	3	LS 210*	Effective Oral Communication	3	
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	SF 206*	D-Lab – Disciplined Discipleship	2	
		2	LBC SCI 101	General Biology (with lab)	4	
LBC MAT 219	Probability and Statistics	3	LBC SCI 203	Anatomy/Physiology 2 (with lab)	4	
LBC SCI 201	Anatomy/Physiology I (with lab)	4	LBC HCM 105	Introduction to Health Sciences	3	
LBC SOC 101	General Psychology	3	LBC SOC 203	Principles of Sociology	3	
	Total	18		Total	19	
	Summer: LBC SOC 325 Human Growth and					
	LBC HCM 21	5 Health	are and Economic	s (3)		
		Junio	r Year			
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0	
		2	HS 202*	Church History 1501 – Present	2	
LBC HCM 301	Healthcare Management	3	SF 306*	D-Lab – Philosophies & Strategies	2	
LBC HCM 110	Medical Technology	3	TH 302*	Doctrine of God the Son	3	
LBC HCM 115	Nutrition and Wellness	3	BC 304	Biblical Peacemaking	3	
LBC HCM 205	Professionalism and Education in Healthcare	3	LBC HCM 302	Healthcare Management 2	3	
LBC HCM 210	Ethical/Legal Issues in Healthcare	3				
	Total	17		Total	13	
		Senio	or Year			
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0	
		2	MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0	
TH 303	Doctrine of Holy Spirit, Angels & Church	3	SF 406	D-Lab- Issues in Discipleship	2	
LBC HCM 450	Healthcare Management Practicum 1	3	TH 402*	Doctrine of Future Things	3	
LBC HCM 310	Evidenced-Based Prac. Research Analysis/Writing	3	BS 310-389	Bible Exposition	2	
			LBC HCM 305	Community Health	3	
<u> </u>			LBC HCM 455	Healthcare Management Practicum 2	3	
		1				
			LBC HCM 460	Healthcare Comprehensive Portfolio	1	

course number. Pre-requisites are required for courses marked with an asterisk (*). Consult the course descriptions to see pre-

requisite requirements.

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN MARKETING

In our business marketing degree, you'll learn relevant topics like accounting, finance, business law and marketing — all presented through the lens of a biblical worldview. To ensure that our students are well-prepared to enter the job force, students earning a Bachelor of Business Marketing will develop a professional portfolio over the course of their academic career to showcase their blossoming marketing skills.

Fall Semester			Spring Semester		
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credit
		Freshm	an Year		
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4
SF 110	Living By Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0
	Total	15		Total	15
	9	ophom	ore Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
EP 201*	Introduction to Philosophy	3	LS 216	Introduction to Economics	2
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	LS 210*	Effective Oral Communication	3
MS 204	Science and Origins	3			2
	Physical Education	1	TH 201*	Doctrine of Scripture and God	3
BS 310-389	Bible Exposition	2	LBC BUS 201	Business Ethics	3
		2	LBC BUS 113	Foundations of Accounting	3
LBC MAT 218	Applied Business Math	3			
	Total	17		Total	16
		Junio	r Year		ı
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
	·	2	HS 202*	Church History 1501 – Present	2
TH 301*	Doctrine of Humanity, Sin & Salvation	3			2
LBC BUS 205	Finance	3	TH 302*	Doctrine of God the Son	3
LBC BUS 230	Leadership	3	BC 304	Biblical Peacemaking	3
LBC BUS 307	Business Law	3	LBC BUS 415	Managerial Economics	3
LBC BUS 302	Marketing	3	LBC BUS 425	Personal Finance and Investment	3
	Total	17		Total	16
		Senio	r Year		<u>'</u>
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
BU 411*	Business Administration Skills	2	MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0
		2			2
TH 303	Doctrine of Holy Spirit, Angels & Church	3	LBC MKT 305	Strategic Marketing	3
LBC BUS 430	Solution Selling	3	LBC MKT 400	Marketing Internship	4
LBC COM 110	Principles and Practices	3	LBC MKT 310	Digital Marketing	3
			LBC MKT 315	Consumer Behavior	3
			LBC MKT 405	Marketing Research	3
	Total	13		Total	-

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN SPORTS MANAGEMENT

While there are many colleges that offer sports management programs, there's none quite like our partnership with Lancaster Bible College. With a program that is intentionally designed to give students field experience before graduating, our students leave equipped and ready to lead in their industry in sports administration. Starting freshman year, students begin working in their field, first by helping to pull off athletic events on campus, followed by an apprenticeship under a skilled professional in their sophomore year, then internships and practicum in their junior and senior years. In total, our students leave with a *minimum* of 440 hours of relevant sport management experience.

	Fall Semester			Spring Semester	
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credits
		Freshn	nan Year		
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4
SF 110	Living By Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0
	Total	_	000	Total	15
		Sophon	nore Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
EP 201*	Introduction to Philosophy	3	LS 216	Introduction to Economics	2
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	LS 210*	Effective Oral Communication	3
MS 204	Science and Origins	3		Physical Education	1
	Physical Education	1	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2			2
		2	TH 201*	Doctrine of Scripture and God	3
LBC SPM	Introduction into Sports Management	3	LBC SPM 130	Sports Communication	3
105					
	Total			Total	16
			r Year		1
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
HS 201*	Church History – Early Church to 1500	2	HS 202*	Church History 1501 – Present	2
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	2			2
	-	2	TH 302*	Doctrine of God the Son	3
TH 301*	Doctrine of Humanity, Sin & Salvation	3	BC 304	Biblical Peacemaking	3
	Physical Education	1	LBC SPM 312	Sociology of Sports	3
LBC SPM 270	Sports Marketing	3	LBC SPM 320	Organizational Leadership in Sports	3
LBC SPM 140	Fundamentals of Coaching	3			
	Total	16		Total	16
		Senio	or Year		
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0
		2	BS 310-389	Bible Exposition	2
TH 303	Doctrine of Holy Spirit, Angels & Church	3	MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0
LBC SPM 420	Sport Finance and Economics	3			2
LBC SPM 430/LBC SOC 305	Sport Rec Managing or Sports Psych	3	TH 402*	Doctrine of Future Things	3
LBC SPM 445	International Sports Management	3	LBC SPM 451	Sports Management Practicum 2	3
LBC SPM 450	Sports Management Practicum 1	3	LBC SPM 470	Sports Law and Ethics	3
			LBC SPM 475	Facility/Event Management	3
	Total	17		Total	16
Emphasis courses are BOLD : general education courses are Red . Courses taken with Lancaster Bible College have a LBC in the					

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN WORKPLACE MINISTRY DEGREE

Beginning Fall 2020, Montana Bible College is expanding the reach of its mission by opening up an additional degree option to its students whereby they can accomplish BOTH an Associate degree or vocational certification AND a bachelor's degree in four years. The aim of the Workplace Ministry degree is to train Christians to be "salt and light" in an effective manner within whatever occupation they choose.

MISSIONAL FIT: MBC exists to glorify God through Biblical higher education by training men and women for a lifetime of dynamic Christian living and service. This is exactly what we will continue doing with the Workplace Ministry Degree.

PHILOSOPHICAL FOUNDATION: Montana Bible College has, from its founding, recognized that not all of God's people will be called into full time ministry as their occupation. Thus, alongside the ministry training degree emphases, MBC has always offered a Certificate in Biblical Studies, expecting those students to complete vocational training in non-ministry fields. The Workplace Ministry Degree is in keeping with the philosophy MBC has always had and expands MBC's training of those students.

NICHE FIT: The Workplace Ministry Degree allows MBC to remain in its niche – training in Bible, ministry skill and disciple-making. We will not have to add faculty or buildings or significant library holdings to support this program. This degree allows us to remain regionally relevant. In our largely rural region, many Christian students are pursuing vocational training, but there are not many Bible colleges and almost no options for non-ministry vocational training from a Biblical worldview. We will continue serving students by enabling them to get a Biblical and vocational education at a low cost that allows them to graduate debt free.

HOW IT WORKS: This program is flexible! Students may start at MBC with no prior college experience, after a gap year program, or having already completed a vocational certificate or Associate degree. MBC helps each student map out a plan from beginning to graduation. For example, a "traditional" student coming to MBC after high school would begin by attaining a Biblical foundation in worldview and Christian living with the MBC Core Curriculum Freshman Year courses, the equivalent of a Certificate in Biblical Studies program. The student then completes an Associate degree or vocational program through a community or technical college. The "professional studies" credits are flexible to accommodate many vocational options. These credits are transferred into MBC, and the student completes his/her remaining bachelor's credits, including specific courses supporting workplace ministry. In addition, there will be a special internship designed just for this program combining real work experience in the vocation of choice alongside ministry mentorship. Students intentionally apply Biblical worldview in the workplace through integrity, hard work ethic, and intentional seizing of evangelism and disciple-making opportunities.



Fall Semester			Spring Semester			
Course #	Course Name	Credits	Course #	Course Name	Credits	
	Freshman Ye	ar at M	ontana Bil	ole College		
BS 101	Old Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	BS	Bible Exposition Course	3	
LS 115	Effective Written Communication	3	BS 102	New Testament Survey (& Storyline)	3	
SF 100	Chapel	0	BS 105	Bible Study Methods (+Logos)	4	
SF 110	Living By Design	3	EP 104	Logic	3	
TH 101	Survey of Doctrine	3	LS 205	Family Development	2	
TH 103	Examining Worldviews	3	SF 100	Chapel	0	
	Total	15		Total	15	
		1			1	
	Sophomore Y	ear at (City College	e (Example)		
COMX 106	Comm in a Dynamic Workplace	3	CAPP 156	Excel	3	
CSCI 100	Introduction To Programming	3	ITS 212	Network Operating Sys-Server A	3	
CSCI 240	Databases and SQL	3	ITS 224	Introduction to Linux	3	
ITS 166	Configuring MS Windows 10	3	NTS 104	CCNA 1: Intro to Networks	3	
ITS 280	Computer Repair & Maintenance	3	WRIT 121	Intro to Technical Writing	3	
M114	Extended Technical Mathematics	3		Ü		
	Total	18		Total	15	
			<u> </u>		I.	
	Junior Year	at City	College (E	xample)		
ITS 217	Network OK – Server Admin/Apps	3	ITS 245	Computer Forensics	3	
ITS 246	Cybersecurity Operations	3	ITS 256	CCNA Security	3	
ITS 226	Advanced Linux	3	ITS 257	Intro to Comp Virtualization	3	
NTS 105	CCNA 2: Routing & Switching Es	3	ITS 283	Health Information Networking	3	
CSCI 214	Server-side Web Prog & Admin	3	ITS 299	Capstone	3	
			NTS 204	CCNA 3: Scaling Networks	3	
	Total	15		Total	18	
	Senior Year	at Mo	•	e College	T	
SF 100	Chapel	0	SF 100	Chapel	0	
BU 411	Business Administration Skills	2	MD 401*	Rural Church Ministry	2	
BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	3	MD 499	Ministry Competency Exam	0	
TH 303	Doctrine of HS, Angels, & Church	3	BS 310-89	Bible Exposition	3	
HS 205	History of Western Civilization	3	TH 402*	Doctrine of Future Things	3	
BU 310	Theology of Work	2	SF 406	Israel Study Tour	2	
MD 400	Internship	4	BC 304	Biblical Peacemaking	3	
			HS 202	Church History	3	
	Total	17		Total	16	
	10441	1	I	1000		

COURSE DESCRIPTIONS

The first number refers to the year the course is designed to be taken: 100 first year, 200 second year, etc.; the middle number is a grouping of courses within the discipline; the last number indicates the placement of the course within the whole of the discipline. An * indicates classes that transfer to Montana State University as general elective credits.

BIBLICAL COUNSELING

Counseling courses prepare students for growth in their own sanctification, as well as guiding others in the process of biblical change.

BC 101 Introduction to Biblical Counseling (3)

Students will learn principles of personal counseling from the biblical perspective of the human personality. The student will also examine representative issues and problems confronted by the pastor or counselor in a church ministry. Spring, offered annually. *Prerequisite: TH 101*.

BC 201 PROBLEMS AND PROCEDURES IN BIBLICAL COUNSELING (3)

Students will learn to apply more fully the biblical principles taught in the Introduction to Biblical Counseling course to a range of specific counseling problems. Topics discussed include medical issues (i.e. chemical imbalance), depression, anger, abuse, ADD/ADHD, addictions, sleep problems, anxiety, eating problems, decision-making, suffering, accurate view of self, life-dominating sins, handling one's past, and crisis counseling. Fall, offered annually. *Prerequisite: BC 101*.

BC 301 Models of Sanctification (3)

Students examine models of sanctification held by various denominations and Christian groups. Students also evaluate and develop their own model for the purpose of promoting personal growth and holiness. Specific attention is given to how moral change occurs. This course can also count as a theology class. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: BC 101*.

BC 302 Marriage and Family Counseling (3)

Students develop skills in knowing how to accurately and appropriately implement biblical truth into their personal lives while also learning how to instruct others to implement and integrate that truth into their lives, marriages, and family relationships. Fall, offered every other year. *Prerequisites: BC 101, BS 103, TH 101*.

BC 303 Counseling Observation (3)

Students observe and discuss video-taped counseling sessions. The course is designed to help the student learn practical skills in counseling by observation, evaluation, critique, and discussion. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: BC 101*.

BC 304 BIBLICAL PEACEMAKING (3)

Students learn a biblical paradigm of relational peace, examining concepts such as forgiveness, confrontation, repentance, reconciliation, restoration, and restitution. Students develop personal conflict resolution skills as well as the ability to coach others through conflict and mediate disputes. Spring, offered every year.

BC 400 Counseling Internship (4)

Students engage in practical application of biblical counseling and the various methodological aspects of the counseling process. The course will include student participation in a counseling situation as a counselor when an actual counseling case can be provided. All actual counseling situations will be supervised and evaluated as a part of the internship course. Internship requirements and applications may be obtained through the Registrar's Office. Fall and spring, offered on demand. *Prerequisite: junior or senior standing. Internships must be passed with a minimum grade of "C"*. Lower grades require repeating the internship.

BC 401 Medical Issues in Counseling (3)

Students study the physiological factors that influence areas in a person's life which are critical when counseling that individual. Attention will be given more specifically to topics such as good health, sleep, depression, ADD/ADHD, chronic fatigue syndrome, fibromyalgia, headaches, obsessive/compulsive disorder, and addictions. Fall, offered every other year.

BC 402 Critique of Modern Counseling Theory (2)

Students gain understanding of the philosophies and methodologies of counseling espoused throughout the secular psychotherapy world as well as the Christian psychological world, contrasting each philosophy and method with God's Word. Special emphasis will be placed on examining the dangers of current integration theory, exposing specific ways integrationist method contradicts the process of biblical change. Fall, offered every other year.

BIBLICAL STUDIES

All courses are directly related to the discipline and process of studying Scripture.

BS 101 OLD TESTAMENT SURVEY (3)

Students are guided through a survey of Old Testament law, history, poetry, and prophecy. The course is designed to acquaint the student with the progressive unfolding of divine revelation and its historical development as a basis for New Testament revelation. Introductory material to each book is given and the content of each book is highlighted. Fall, offered annually.

BS 102 New Testament Survey (3)

Students study the continuity of revelation in its fulfillment of Old Testament expectation. The Inter-Testamental period is covered, and the advent and life of Christ are considered as they pertain to Israel, the Church, and future things. Consideration is given to the founding of the Church, its personnel, doctrinal endowments, and its consummation. A brief exposition of each New Testament book is presented with a focus on themes, key texts, and background. Spring, offered annually.

BS 105: BIBLE STUDY METHODS + LOGOS LAB (4)

Students are introduced to systematic, personal Bible study, gaining the foundation for a lifetime of profitable Bible study. The steps of observation, interpretation, and application are examined and related to methods for studying a Bible verse, chapter book, topic, and character. This course also includes a lab in the training and use of Logos online. Students will learn to use Logos as a tool for Bible study. A significant feature of the class will be group study and discussion. Bible study as a means of grace towards sanctification is stressed. Spring, offered annually.

BS 212 THE GOSPEL OF JOHN (2)

Students examine the Gospel of John and see the person of Christ as described in John's Gospel. Throughout the course the goal is to help students understand the flow of John's argument, the purpose of his writing, and the major themes throughout the book.

BS 215 GENESIS (2)

Students delve into Genesis through exposition, examining the author(s), audience(s), purpose(s) and content of the book. Since Genesis is the foundational book of Scripture, its impact on other Scriptures will be examined. Special emphasis will be placed on controversial areas to clarify the controversy and understand the author's intent. Students will learn to use key principles of Bible interpretation to help them correctly interpret this book.

BS 310-329 NARRATIVE AND LEGAL LITERATURE (2 OR 3)

Students study the narrative or legal literature found in the Old and New Testaments. Courses may include a survey of many narratives or may focus on a specific narrative from the Old or New Testament.

BS 330-359 Epistolary Literature (2)

Students examine a single letter or multiple letters in Scripture written to specific communities in the first century and their subsequent transmission and use by later communities. Courses may include, but are not limited to, historical analysis and theological evaluation.

BS 360-369 WISDOM/POETIC LITERATURE (2)

Students examine the structure and use of poetic and wisdom literature in Hebrew Scripture. Various types of poetic nuance and the import of wisdom literature in the community may all be considered. Courses may be structured to examine each genre or to focus on one specific genre as it is found in the ancient texts.

BS 370-389 Prophetic Literature (2)

Students engage in the study of biblical prophetic literature. Courses may include works from the Old Testament or New Testament, including the subgenre of apocalyptic literature.

BUSINESS

Business classes are intended to give students an introduction to financial operations of non-profit organizations sufficient for interacting with budgets, taxes, and accounting procedures.

BU 205 BUSINESS AS MISSION (2)

The purpose of this course is to stimulate the student's thinking on how faith and work can and should intersect as well as how Christian mission and the marketplace can support each other in the work of the gospel. Moreover, this course will equip the student to go about business as a mission in a variety of cross-cultural contexts.

BU 310 THEOLOGY OF WORK AND WITNESS IN THE WORKFORCE (2)

This course will explore the concept of work as the Christian's vocation, or "calling" as taught in Scripture, and approached throughout church history. Students will furthermore work to develop their own theology of work as well as strategies for applying it to the workplace. The overarching theme of the course will be how the

Christian's work in "the marketplace" expresses his/her participation with Christ in his redemptive work in the world. Also covered will be practical and appropriate ways in which one can evangelize in the workplace.

BU 411 BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION SKILLS (2)

Students are introduced to the skills of organizational planning and financial management and accounting for non-profit Christian ministries. Specific skills include the preparation and reading of budgets as well as principles for operating a ministry within budgetary guidelines. Fall, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: LS 101*.

ETHICS AND PHILOSOPHY

Ethics is not a discipline distinct from Bible. Instead, these classes focus on how every aspect of culture and life <u>is</u> ethics.

EP 104 Logic (3)

This course will be a study in the art and science of reasoning well. Specifically, this course will focus on defining and relating terms, and determining the relationships between statements as well as recognizing and evaluating the validity of arguments. The course will also engage in formal logic, concentrating on categorical propositions and syllogisms. Finally, the student will be equipped to recognize and formally engage logical fallacies. The ultimate goal of this course will be to train students to love what is true, good, and beautiful, so as to honor and follow the God who personifies these attributes and personally invites us to engage him through them.

EP 201 Introduction to Philosophy (3)

Students are guided on a survey of philosophy that seeks to introduce them to the major issues in the discipline such as method, logic, metaphysics, epistemology, ethics, and the philosophy of religion. Answers given to these issues by various philosophers and philosophical schools, including Christianity, will be studied. Fall, offered every other year. *Prerequisites: TH 101 and BS 103*.

EP 204 BIBLICAL WORLDVIEW & CULTURAL ENGAGEMENT (2)

A survey course in philosophy that seeks to introduce the student to three major philosophical ideas that permeate and undergird western thought. These three ideas are naturalism, rationalism, and relativism. We will trace the historical development from modernism to postmodernism along these three lines of thought. Both theological and philosophical answers to these issues will be studied. Offered on demand.

HISTORY

These courses are primarily historical studies of the development of Christian thought and doctrine as well as the people and events which formed the thought patterns.

HS 201 Church History to 1500 (2)

Students are guided on a survey of the expansion of Christianity from Apostolic times to 1500, including an introduction to key figures, pivotal theological issues, significant movements, and the resultant development of institutions and organizations. Fall, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: HS 205.*

HS 202 Church History 1501 to Present (2)

Students continue to study the growth of Christ's body, the Church, from 1500 to the present day. Continued emphasis is given to key figures, pivotal theological issues, significant movements, and the resultant development of institutions and organizations. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: HS 201*.

HS 205 HISTORY OF WESTERN CIVILIZATION (3)

This course includes analysis and discussion of major events, individuals, works, and ideas that have shaped the Western mind and the structure of Western Civilization. It traces civilization from the ancient world of Greece and Rome through the founding of America. Emphasis is placed on the importance of primary sources in the pursuit of accurate history, the power of ideology to shape culture, and the understanding that ideas truly do have consequences. Fall, offered annually.

HS 301 CHRISTIAN POLITICAL THOUGHT (3)

This course will survey the manner in which major Christian thinkers have regarded the role of the state and the church's relationship to it from the era of the New Testament to the revolutionary period of the eighteenth century. Attention will be given to topics like the source and nature of law, the concept of a Christian society, the extent and type of obedience Christians should render to the state, as well as the question of justice. The purpose of this course is for us to examine how we can appropriate the rich heritage of Christian tradition in our own engagement with the state in post-Christian western culture. In this class students will engage with primary source texts representative of each period. Fall, offered every other year. *Prerequisites HS201, HS202, HS205.*

LETTERS AND SCIENCE

Classes from the letters and sciences department include biblical language courses and social science courses.

LS 101 FAMILY DEVELOPMENT (2)

Students interact with a Biblical worldview as it applies broadly to family life, addressing such issues as time, finances, communication, sexuality, dating/courting, marriage, roles of husbands and wives, child raising, and leaving a legacy. Spring, offered annually.

LS 102 GEOGRAPHY OF PALESTINE (2)

Students engage in a practical study of the topographical, geological, climatic, and agricultural characteristics of Palestine and a survey of archeological discoveries. Students examine the role of geography in the history of the region and in biblical history. Offered on demand.

LS 103 DINOSAUR DIG (2)

This field laboratory course is conducted on site in Glendive, Montana. The student will experience paleontology first hand, learning how to identify, collect and interpret fossils from a Christian and creationist perspective. With fossils from T-Rex, Triceratops, Hadrosaur, turtles, and others commonly found on the site, everyone will have a hands-on experience of discovering and working with real bones. But all is not bones and digging. Each evening the student will have an opportunity to learn from the teaching of God-honoring creation lectures that connect the day's experiences to the life-giving Word of God.

LS 115 Effective Written Communication (3)

This class addresses the major principles of college writing, which are meant to serve students in all the disciplines across the curriculum. The course concentrates primarily on expository and argumentative writing; traditional rhetorical modes; and effective composing, revising, and editing strategies. Students gain important skills in grammar, library use, research, and the construction of quality academic essays. Fall, offered annually.

LS 201 GREEK I (3)

This course introduces the basic grammar, syntax, and vocabulary of the biblical Greek as it relates to nouns, preparing the student to translate, interpret, and apply Scripture. Fall, offered every other year. *Prerequisites: BS 103 and 104.*

LS 202 GREEK II (3)

This course introduces the basic grammar, syntax, and vocabulary of biblical Greek as it relates to verbs, preparing the student to translate, interpret, and apply Scripture. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: LS 201.*LS 210 Effective Oral Communication.

LS 210 Effective Oral Communication (3)

Based upon the theory and practice of rhetoric in Western Civilization, this class teaches students to consider all aspects of communication in terms of the message, the speaker, the audience, and the occasion. Speeches given in class must reflect mastery of the five canons of rhetoric and the six parts of a discourse and include the areas of ceremonial, political, forensic, and persuasive speeches. Since effective speaking presupposes sound logic, common fallacies will be examined. Spring, offered annually. *Prerequisite: LS 115 and EP 102.*

LS 216 Introduction to Economics (2)

General theory and specific real-world applications illuminate the economic functions of our society. Topics covered include basic concepts of workings of markets, supply, demand, fiscal and monetary policy, and governmental roles. Class discusses current personal, business, governmental, and contemporary economic issues and problems. Spring, offered annually.

LS 301 GREEK III (3)

This course introduces the intermediate grammar and syntax of biblical Greek, preparing students to translate, interpret, and apply Romans 1-4. Fall, offered every other year. *Prerequisites: LS 201 and 202.*

LS 302 GREEK IV (3)

This course introduces the intermediate grammar and syntax of biblical Greek, preparing students to translate, interpret, and apply Romans 5-8. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisites: LS 201, 202, and 301.*

LS 303 HEBREW I (2)

Students are introduced to the grammatical elements of biblical Hebrew, including the vowel system, vocabulary, nouns, adjectives, and the verbal system. Students will learn to translate simple Hebrew and to use a lexicon and other Hebrew reference tools. Fall, offered every other year. *Prerequisites: BS 103 and 104*.

LS 304 HEBREW II (2)

Students continue examining the grammatical elements of biblical Hebrew and are introduced to the methodology of exegesis in the Hebrew Bible. Students will do exegetical work in various genres such as narrative, legal literature, psalms, wisdom, and prophecy. Emphasis will be placed on using lexicons, concordances, and Hebrew-based commentaries. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: LS 303*.

LS 410-429 GREEK EXEGESIS (2)

Students do translation work in specific books either in a classroom setting or via independent study. Typically, this class is taken by students who have completed LS 302 and wish to hone their translation skills. If a student has not previously translated the book being translated by the LS 301 or 302 classes, the student may translate with either of these classes. Offered on demand. *Prerequisite: LS 302*.

LS 430-449 HEBREW EXEGESIS (2)

Students do translation work in specific books either in a classroom setting or via independent study. Typically, this class is taken by students who have completed LS 304 and wish to hone their translation skills. Offered on demand. *Prerequisite: LS 304*.

MINISTRY DEVELOPMENT

In addition to developing a cognitive base, these courses are designed to develop the well-rounded skills needed to provide leadership in the Church.

MD 302 TEACHING CHILDREN - AGES 0-11 (3)

This course operates with the understanding that teaching takes place anytime there is "communication of knowledge". Students will learn and practice the art of teaching by considering their own learning processes, becoming adept at the skill of imparting truth, and growing in their capability to cultivate their own student's ability to use his or her mind and body. Fall, offered every other year, beginning Fall of 2024.

MD 400 MINISTRY INTERNSHIP (4)

The student will serve in a local church or ministry under the guidance of a qualified pastor or Christian leader. The internship will be designed to provide practical field training in a particular ministry such as Christian education, youth or campus ministry, Christian camp ministry or other MBC approved and directed outdoor ministry. Internship requirements and applications may be obtained through the Registrar's Office. Fall and spring, offered on demand. *Prerequisite: Junior or Senior standing. Internships must be passed with a minimum grade of "C"*. Lower grades require repeating the internship.

MD 401 RURAL CHURCH MINISTRY (2)

Students apply the basic principles of cultural anthropology to the unique problems of ministering in the subcultures of rural America. The techniques of successful church-planting ministries and the insights of current research will be examined with a view to preparing the student to minister effectively in the rural church setting. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: Junior or Senior standing.*

MD 402 Next Generation Ministry Internship (4)

The student will serve in a local church or ministry under the guidance of a qualified pastor or Christian leader. The internship will be designed to provide practical field training in a particular ministry such as Christian education, youth or campus ministry, Christian camp ministry or other MBC approved ministry. Internship requirements and applications may be obtained through the Registrar's Office. Fall and spring, offered on demand. *Prerequisite: Junior or Senior standing. Internships must be passed with a minimum grade of "C". Lower grades require repeating the internship.*

MD 403 WOMEN IN MINISTRY (2)

Students will learn the theology of women in ministry in a Biblical context. In addition, attention will be given to how to engage women in the local church from the standpoint of discipleship. The issues of marriage, children, work, and ministry will all be addressed as they pertain to local church involvement or potential leadership in women's or children's ministry. Fall, offered every other year.

MD 499 MINISTRY COMPETENCY EXAM (0)

The competency exam is a time of reflection by the student on the benefits and learning experiences of their education at MBC. Students are required to rehearse some of their history at MBC, comment on specific classes, and give feedback to professors. All available professors will be present at the exam and will be given the opportunity to question graduates. Following the student presentation and faculty evaluation, a determination will be made regarding the candidate's competency for graduation. *Prerequisites: completed during final semester.*

MISSIONS

In preparation for ministry in a specific culture, cultural awareness and understanding are essential. The Missions emphasis exposes students to these elements and trains them to interact on a meaningful level with people for the purpose of bringing the Gospel to that culture.

MI 101 CHRISTIAN MISSION PERSPECTIVES (2)

Students are guided on an overview of the missionary obligations of today's Christian, viewed from the perspectives of Scripture, mission theology, mission history, and contemporary mission trends. Spring, offered every year.

MI 201 MISSIONS PRINCIPLES (2)

Students learn to address practical issues faced by missionaries on the field and at home on furlough. Such issues as deputation, family life, and interpersonal conflict are a few of the subjects discussed. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: MI 101*.

MI 305 Introduction to Native American Ministries (2)

This course is designed to introduce students to the specific field of Native American Ministry. We will examine history from European contact of the late 1400's until today, looking at significant events and how federal law and policy has shaped the landscape of "Indian Country" we find ourselves in today. We will also examine specific aspects of Native American culture, including the belief system adhered to. Lastly, we will learn the practical "how to" of ministry in this specific ethnic context. Spring, offered every other year.

MI 307 CHURCH PLANTING (2)

Students will develop the theological basis for planting a functional church community in a familiar or foreign culture. The logistics of church planting will also be discussed to prepare students for all steps in the process. Fall, offered every other year.

MI 309 Cross Cultural Training (2)

Cross Culture Training involves theory and praxis. Theory in MI 309 examines aspects of the epistemological, technological, and theological assumptions of American modernism and culture juxtaposing this with premodern and Christian assumptions. While examining these assumptions, students will meet cross cultural Christian workers, attend unfamiliar cultural events, and study their own familial, local, Rocky Mountain, religious, and Western cultures. Students should come expecting to use their previous coursework in the Missions emphasis to aid them in discussing and understanding cultures and most importantly engaging people within those cultures. The Incarnation and Pentecost will be the foundation of the theory and praxis in this course.

MI 401 ANTHROPOLOGY (2)

Students develop basic skills in interpreting and understanding a culture foreign to the observer. Students will be taught how to learn various facets of a civilization with a view to being able to do mission work within that context. Discussion about contextualization and the impact of a missionary's own worldview on a target culture will also help students learn how to approach that culture. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: MI* 101.

MI 403 SPIRITUAL WARFARE IN MISSIONS (2)

Students examine the subject of warfare issues in a missiological ministry context. A sound biblical theology of spiritual warfare will be established. The course includes extensive discussion of the practical implications of ministering in an animistic context. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisites: MI 101, TH 101*.

MI 410 Missions Internship (12)

Students will engage in a mission project involving skills they have learned and with a view to gaining experience that will help the student determine future missions involvement and competency in various aspects of missions. Immersion in a foreign culture or significant inclusion in a familiar culture is the goal. Internship requirements and applications may be obtained through the Registrar's Office. Fall typically, offered on demand. *Prerequisite: junior or senior standing. Internships must be passed with a minimum grade of "C". Lower grades require repeating the internship.*

MATH AND SCIENCE

These classes provide general education credits toward fulfillment of a bachelor's degree. Courses are designed to be practical for those preparing for ministry and engagement of the world around them with the gospel.

MS 202 ASTRONOMY (3)

An overview of the fundamentals of Astronomy, including: Space (size, expansion, inflation), Light (optics, telescopes, Doppler Effect, spectra, red shift), Gravity (orbits, warping space-time), Cosmology (creation, steady state, Big Bang, multiverse), Earth (orbit, rotation, tilt), Moon and planets (calendar, retrogression), Sun (power,

sunspots, solar flares), Stars (types, life-cycle), and Galaxies (kinds, distance, look-back time). The lab emphasizes observing the night sky using the naked eye, binoculars, small telescopes, and cameras. Offered on demand.

MS 204 SCIENCE AND ORIGINS (3)

Students will learn the scientific method and be able to apply this method to questions related to the origins of the universe. Biblical issues such as the flood and creation will be given attention from the aspect of varying claims in areas of scientific study, including astronomy, geology, chemistry, biology, and mathematics. Fall, offered annually.

Music

Because music is an integral part of the Christian worship experience, courses are offered within this field of study.

MU 101 CHOIR (1)

Students have the opportunity to participate in a vocal ensemble with the purpose of improving vocal skills and learning to corporately lead worship through music. Fall and spring. Offered annually. <u>Note: May be repeated for additional credit, not to exceed 8 credit hours. After the first two credits have been paid, tuition is waived for future repeats.</u> Fall & Spring, offered annually.

MU 305 Music-Worship Leadership (2)

Music-worship leadership is involved in the vast majority of corporate worship gatherings. As such, specific attention is given to practical skills pertaining to leading music-worship in the corporate worship gathering. In particular, song selection, Scripture selection, speaking, and music-worship leadership in the corporate worship gathering are addressed. This course has a lecture/discussion component and a lab component. Fall, offered annually. <u>Note: Restricted Entry. This course is available for returning students and must receive a restricted entry recommendation.</u>

MU 401 Music in Worship (2)

Students gain firm awareness of the responsibilities of those who lead in public worship. Attention is given to understanding the songs historically and Scripturally and to the structure and progression of various types of services. Spring, offered every year. *Recommended: MU 101*.

PASTORAL STUDIES

Courses in this section are centered on development of pastoral skills necessary for serving and ministering to God's people.

PS 301 HOMILETICS I (3) /

Students are introduced to the study and practice of sermon preparation and delivery. Building upon the foundation of BS 103, 104 and LS 210, the student learns how to construct a sermon which is biblically sound and relevant to the human situation. Emphasis is given to spiritual preparation for preaching as well as the mechanics of sermon preparation. Fall, offered every other year. *Prerequisites: BS 103, 104, and LS 210.*

PS 302 Homiletics II (3)

Students study the various literary genres of Scripture in order to study the biblical text accurately and preach it in a manner which is faithful to the genre in which the Holy Spirit gave it. The course serves as a practicum for PS 301 by giving each student the opportunity to hone preparation and delivery skills. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: PS 301*.

PS 304 Youth Ministry & Cultural Analysis (2)

The trend-setting nature of youth culture is examined according to its sources and media. Engaging this culture for evangelistic and discipleship purposes is explored from the context of ministry within a local church. Spring, offered every other year.

PS 400 PASTORAL INTERNSHIP (4)

The pastoral student will serve in a local church under the guidance of a qualified pastor. In addition to receiving practical field training in various ministry skills, the student will be exposed to the challenges of small churches in a stimulating way. Internship requirements and applications may be obtained through the Registrar's Office. Fall and spring, offered on demand. *Prerequisite: junior or senior standing. Internships must be passed with a minimum grade of "C"*. Lower grades require repeating the internship.

PS 401 PASTORAL LEADERSHIP (2)

Students examine the roles and responsibilities of the pastor as leader of a local congregation. The pastoral student learns biblical and practical principles for the organization, functioning, and operational procedures of the local church, and is introduced to the qualifications, duties, and responsibilities of the pastor in his relations to the Church, his community, and the world in which he lives. Special emphasis is placed upon the principles of effective Christian leadership. Fall, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: junior or senior standing*.

PS 402 ADVANCED PASTORAL LEADERSHIP (2)

This course will equip the student with knowledge and skills beyond the introductory level of PS 401 Pastoral Leadership. Included is further treatment of the biblical theology of the shepherd and elder, theology of and guidelines for officiating special services, calling and candidating, building projects, pastoral administration and finances, and applied discipleship. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: junior or senior standing and PS 401*.

PS 403 Discipling & Counseling Youth (2)

Application is made of discipleship and Biblical counseling principles specific to issues encountered by youth and their parents. Strategies for discipling youth in the context of parental authority are highlighted. Spring, offered every other year.

PS 406 Youth Ministry in the Local Church (2)

Consideration is given to the dynamics of youth ministry in the context of the local church. Some issues receiving special attention are: interaction between church and family; healthy relationships within church leadership; the process of developing and walking alongside a leadership team; and management of various organizational issues including safety, budget, insurance, transportation, planning and events. Spring, offered every other year.

PHYSICAL FITNESS

Glorifying God does not only happen with our minds, but with our bodies. Classes are offered in this department bearing this in mind. (Select OD classes marked with a \ddagger also qualify for PE credits for non-OD majors.)

PE 110-199 PHYSICAL FITNESS (1)

Students reinforce their conviction that their body is a temple of the Holy Spirit by taking action to keep that body healthy. Four credits of physical fitness education are required for all students unless released by medical certification. These courses provide an understanding of physical fitness and guide the student in the choice and implementation of personal fitness goals. Fall and spring, offered on demand.

PE 110, 113 CLIMBING FUNDAMENTALS (1) OR (2)

This course is taught at The Spire, a climbing facility just two blocks from the MBC campus. Certified climbing instructors teach students basic safety, procedures and techniques. The course is offered on Tuesdays for one credit or Tuesdays and Thursdays for two credits.

PE 118, 120 ADVANCED CLIMBING (1) OR (2)

This course is taught at The Spire, a climbing facility just two blocks from the MBC campus. In this course, students will learn the necessary skills and techniques to climb outside. With a focus on technical skills, students will build on the knowledge gained in Climbing Fundamentals. The course is offered on Tuesdays for one credit or Tuesdays and Thursdays for two credits. *Prerequisite: PE 110 or 113*.

PE 123 HEALTHY LIVING (1)

Students will learn and practice using their material resources for the glory of God in such a way that will teach them to optimize their "talents" of energy as they order their life rhythms. Included in these resources will be the following: time management, sleep, mental and emotional wisdom, diet, food planning and preparation, hydration, and exercise. This is a Tuesday only class.

PE 124 HEALTHY LIVING (2)

Includes all aspects of PE 123 and in addition students will learn and practice ways to keep their bodies through exercise, focusing on the components of cardiovascular, stabilization and strength, especially under conditions that include limited time, space, and equipment. This is a Tuesday and Thursday class.

PE 125 HEALTHY LIVING (1)

Students will learn and practice ways to keep their bodies through exercise, focusing on the components of cardiovascular, stabilization and strength, especially under conditions that include limited time, space, and equipment. This is a Thursday only class.

PE 130, 131 BRAZILIAN JIU-JITSU (1) OR (2)

This class is an introduction to fundamental Brazilian Jiu-Jitsu. Unlike most BJJ instruction which presents techniques in random order, these lessons are taught in linear fashion so that every lesson builds on the skills acquired in previous lessons. Regardless of your skill level your confidence and technical proficiency will grow measurably in every single lesson. This training will develop your core strength and coordination. Jiu-Jitsu focuses on joint manipulation, control, and leverage. The course is Monday for (1) credit or Monday & Thursday for (2) credits.

SPIRITUAL FORMATION

Spiritual maturity is not automatic. The aim of these courses is to foster habits of lifelong discipleship both personally, and in the community of Christ's Body.

SF 100 CHAPEL (PASS/FAIL)

Chapel affords an opportunity for corporate worship and teaching. Students are exposed to a variety of teaching from guest speakers from local churches, mission agencies, service organizations, MBC faculty and staff, as well as opportunity for student testimonies and prayer time. Through chapel, students are challenged to consider opportunities for ministry both during and after college. Chapel is required for students enrolled in the B.A. program and for those enrolled in 7 or more credits. Fall and spring.

SF 120 ACADEMIC CULTURE TRAINING FOR STUDENTS (ACTS) (PASS/FAIL)

The mission of the Academic Culture Training for Students (ACTS) is to provide additional help to students so they may achieve academic success. Some of our students may demonstrate difficulty in their study skills and ability to comprehend required reading assignments. The primary avenue for assistance is a one-on-one meeting with an academic coach who will work individually with the student to determine a plan of action. Students selected for participation in the program will be notified by the Vice President of Academic Affairs.

SF 406ST ISRAEL STUDY TOUR (2)

The Discipleship Lab classes culminate with an optional study tour in Israel tracing the life and ministry of Jesus chronologically as "The" Disciple-maker. Students will visit various key historical, geographical, and archaeological sites pertinent to Jesus's life and disciple-making ministry to better understand His discipleship priorities, strategies, and methodologies. This class will include non-student participants, therefore, students' learning will include on-field leadership, relationship-building, and teaching opportunities. This class is open to junior and senior students who have completed their Discipleship Lab series through SF 305 at the 2-credit tuition rate. Non-MBC students can audit this class for the full cost of the study tour. Spring, offered annually. *Prerequisite: SF 305*.

THEOLOGY

These courses are systematic doctrinal studies and courses which include the study of "cults" and defense of the faith.

TH 101 SURVEY OF DOCTRINE (3)

Students are introduced to the study of the great doctrines of the Christian faith as presented in Scripture. The ten major themes of the Bible which are examined are Scripture, God, Jesus Christ, the Holy Spirit, angels, man, sin, salvation, the Church, and eschatology. Fall, offered annually.

TH 102 APOLOGETICS (3)

Students examine the evidence for the biblical worldview and learn to address the opposition's attacks, demonstrating that the Christian faith is reasonable and defensible. Spring, offered annually.

TH 103: Examining Worldviews (3)

Examining Worldviews explores the crossroads between God's eternal truth in an ever changing culture and world. Emphasis will be placed on the art of reflective thinking and discernment, and the application of Scripture to our daily lives.

TH 201 DOCTRINE OF THE SCRIPTURES AND GOD (3)

Students delve into the subjects of revelation, inspiration, canonicity, translations, versions, textual criticism, and the nature of the Godhead as presented in the Scriptures. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: TH 101.*

TH 202 World Religions (2)

Students are guided on a survey of each major world belief system in order to provide them with a foundational understanding of common themes and differences in each system. Strategies of evangelism are also examined with regard to their effectiveness in displaying the uniqueness of Christ. Spring, offered every other year.

TH 301 DOCTRINE OF HUMANITY, SIN, AND SALVATION (3)

Students study the creation, original state, and fall of humanity, along with the effects of sin upon humanity and God's provision of salvation in the person and work of Christ. Biblical terms such as redemption, propitiation, reconciliation, forgiveness, justification, regeneration, and sanctification are studied. Fall, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: TH 101.*

TH 302 Doctrine of God the Son (3)

Students focus their study on the person and work of Jesus Christ. By way of contrast, the student will also examine heretical views of Christ from the past and the present. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: TH 101.*

TH 303 Doctrine of the Holy Spirit, Angels, and the Church (3)

Students focus their attention on the person and work of the Holy Spirit; the origin, nature, work, and destiny of both holy and fallen angels; and the study of the Church. The course brings into focus God's purpose for today and the spiritual battle that rages as Satan opposes that purpose. Fall, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: TH 101.*

TH 402 DOCTRINE OF FUTURE THINGS AND CONTEMPORARY ISSUES (3)

Students integrate the teachings of Scripture concerning the future of Israel, the Church, and the nations in the first half of this course, while the second portion focuses on current theological debates. Spring, offered every other year. *Prerequisite: TH 101.*

ADMINISTRATION AND FACULTY

Mr. Ryan Ward, President, Faculty

Dr. Les Walton, Vice-President of Executive Affairs, Faculty

Dr. Andre Gazal, Vice-President of Academic Affairs, Faculty

Mrs. Diann Floth, Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. Liz Vanskike, Dean of Enrollment

Mr. Kevin Smith, Library Director

Mrs. Cheryl Anderson, Registrar

Adjunct Faculty may be found on the Montana Bible College Website.